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Fellow Shareholders:

2012 was another year of strong growth, excellent 
operational progress and record-setting results for 
Avigilon. The multi-billion dollar global video surveillance 
market is rapidly transitioning from analog to high-
definition, and we continue to be at the forefront, leading 
the industry-wide shift. 

We entered 2012 with a focus on driving growth through 
three key initiatives, which we set out during our initial 
public offering at the end of 2011. These were: 

1.  Extending our global sales reach by growing 
our team; 

2. Expanding and accelerating product innovation; and 
3. Strengthening our brand awareness. 

As we moved through the year, we consistently 
delivered on all fronts. As a result, we generated 
continued profitable growth while increasing our 
strategic investments in the business to position 
Avigilon for future growth.

We achieved significant year-over-year improvements 
in all of our key financial metrics, reflecting broad-based 
growth, both geographically and by customer. Revenue 
increased 67 percent to $100.3 million in 2012. Our 
gross margin improved to 49 percent of revenue, up 
from 46 percent in 2011. EBITDA and net income nearly 
doubled year-over-year to $12.7 million and $7.2 million 
in 2012, respectively. We also finished 2012 with a much 
stronger balance sheet. Cash and equivalents at year-
end rose to $50 million from $12.4 million at the end  
of 2011.

Our exceptional performance for the year was 
recognized on a number of levels. We saw our stock 
price appreciate almost three-fold throughout the year, 
and brought on many new investors with a $26 million 
bought deal financing, which was up from the originally 
expected $23 million due to high demand. We also 
received several industry awards, such as Cantech 
Letter TSX Technology Stock of the Year and the fastest-
growing company in Canada on the Deloitte Technology 
Fast 50™. And for the second year in a row, we were 
ranked as the fastest growing software company in 
North America on the Deloitte Technology Fast 500™. 
We are very proud to have the recognition of our peers 
in the technology industry. 

Fiscal 2012 Strategy Execution
You will read more about our achievements in 2012 in 
the following pages, but I would like to highlight a few of 
the key ones in each of our three growth initiative areas.

Extending our global sales reach
During 2012, we strengthened our sales presence in 
our target geographic regions, adding to the sales team 
across North America, Latin America, Europe and the 
Middle East. We also hired a senior sales director to 
develop our Asia-Pacific business. Our efforts paid off, 
as 2012 sales were up year-over-year in each region. 

Our sales strategy, historically, has focused on the entry 
level and middle range of the surveillance market. 
However, during 2012 we positioned ourselves to 
increase our focus on enterprise opportunities in key 
market verticals by further expanding our business 
development group. We started showing signs of 
success during the year, with a number of larger 
enterprise sales into casinos in Canada, the US and 
internationally. In addition, Tyco Integrated Security, the 
commercial integration arm of Tyco/ADT and the leading 
provider of business security solutions worldwide, 
approved Avigilon products for inclusion in its preferred 
product listing. 

Expanding and accelerating product innovation 
Product innovation has always been a key strategic 
advantage for Avigilon, and 2012 was no exception. 
We introduced several new products during the year, 
including our first high-definition Pan-Tilt-Zoom cameras, 
our high-definition Bullet camera series and our next-
generation H.264 platform. We also unveiled our ACC 
5.0, the fifth generation of the Avigilon Control Center 
software. In addition, we increased the capabilities and 
expanded the skill set of our product development 
team, adding new members throughout the year.

To support our expanding product portfolio and better 
meet growing demand, we increased the capacity of 
our manufacturing facility located in Richmond, British 
Columbia in 2012. We added two significant modules 
to our robotic circuit board assembly line, and we 
increased the size of the plant by 150 percent to provide 
for improved efficiency in our assembly operations and 
for future growth. With the infrastructure we now have in 
place, we are confident we can support annual revenue 
well above $200 million with additional space available 
to grow well beyond that. 

Letter to Shareholders
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Strengthening our brand awareness 
Increasing awareness of the Avigilon brand plays 
an important role in fuelling our continued growth. 
We believe our strong 2012 results are an excellent 
testament to our success in this regard. We employed 
diverse and effective marketing initiatives throughout 
the year. We launched our new Company website. We 
increased our participation in trade shows, attending 
more than 50. We launched direct mail campaigns 
to target specific industry verticals and regions while 
also advertising in new markets. Of particular note, we 
took an innovative approach to gaining the attention of 
C-level executives and other key decision makers by 
advertising in business publications, such as Forbes, 
Bloomberg and The Economist.

Fiscal 2013 Opportunity
Our proven growth strategy is clearly working, so our 
focus for 2013 remains the same as 2012. We plan to 
leverage our success to-date to deliver further growth.

Today, surveillance is a “must have” for businesses and 
large organizations. The traditional use of surveillance 
for safety, security and protection of assets is still of high 
importance. However, we are also increasingly seeing 
surveillance tools being used in new ways to solve other 
business problems, such as regulatory compliance. 
As such, worldwide demand for video surveillance is 
growing rapidly. According to research analysts, the 

market could reach US$29 billion by 2016. In addition, 
demand for high-definition surveillance technology, 
where we have the leading product portfolio, has 
overtaken demand for legacy analog products.

We continue to make significant progress in geographic 
reach, vertical market and key account focus, product 
innovation and brand awareness. I believe that 
Avigilon’s position has never been as strong as it is 
today. As an executive management team, we are 
confident we remain well-positioned for sustained 
success in 2013, and beyond. 

Our continued growth, innovation and success are 
the result of the exceptional group of people that are 
Avigilon. I thank all of our employees for their dedication 
and hard work and our Board of Directors for their 
continued support. I also thank you, our shareholders, 
for your ongoing commitment. 

Sincerely,

Alexander Fernandes 
President & Chief Executive Officer
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The following management’s discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) of the financial condition and results of 
operations of Avigilon Corporation (“Avigilon”) has information and discussion as of and for the years ended 
December 31, 2012 and 2011. All audited financial information presented in this management’s discussion and 
analysis was prepared in accordance with IFRS. This discussion and analysis contains forward-looking 
statements that involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions, including statements regarding developments in 
Avigilon’s operations in future periods, adequacy of financial resources and future plans and objectives of 
Avigilon. Actual results could differ materially from those discussed in these forward-looking statements due to 
a number of factors. There can be no assurance that such information will prove to be accurate, and readers 
are cautioned not to place undue reliance on this forward-looking information. 

This MD&A has been prepared as of February 28, 2013. All amounts are expressed in Canadian dollars unless 
otherwise stated.

Caution regarding forward-looking information

This report includes forward-looking statements about our activities, events and developments that we expect 
to or anticipate may occur in the future including, for example, statements about our business outlook, 
assessment of market conditions, strategies, future plans and future sales. Forward-looking statements 
normally contain words like believe, expect, anticipate, plan, intend, continue, estimate, may, will, should and 
similar expressions. Such statements are not guarantees of future performance. They are based on 
management’s expectations and assumptions regarding historical trends, current conditions and expected 
future developments, as well as other factors that we believe are appropriate in the circumstances. 

We have based these statements on estimates and assumptions that we believed were reasonable when the 
statements were prepared. Our actual results could be substantially different because of the risks and 
uncertainties associated with our business. Important risks that could cause such differences include, but are 
not limited to, the length of sales cycles, rapid technological advancement, competition, the availability of 
critical inputs, foreign exchange rate occurrences and doing business in foreign countries. Additionally, 
differences could arise because of events that are announced or completed after the date of this report, 
including mergers, acquisitions, other business combinations and divestitures. You will find more information 
about the risks and uncertainties affecting our business in the “Risk Factors” section of our Annual Information 
Form dated March 21, 2012, which is available on SEDAR (www.sedar.com).

We do not update or revise forward-looking information even if new information becomes available unless 
legislation requires us to do so. You should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements.

Overview

Avigilon is a leader in the design, manufacturing and marketing of high-definition (“HD”) and megapixel (“MP”)
network-based video surveillance systems and equipment for the global security market. The Company was 
incorporated on October 22, 2004 and spent three years developing the Avigilon system, which is designed to 
provide high quality video capture, transmission, recording and playback. The components of the Avigilon 
system can be sold separately or in combination to provide customers with a customizable end-to-end video 
surveillance solution, and include:

• The Avigilon Control Center (“ACC”) video management software (“VMS”) with High-Definition Stream 
Management™ (”HDSM”) technology, which is available in Core, Standard and Enterprise versions to 
suit all levels of applications; 

• The industry’s broadest range of high-definition internet protocol (“IP”) cameras, with resolutions 
ranging from 1MP to 29MP;

• Recording hardware; and

• System accessories, such as lenses, camera enclosures and joystick/keyboard controllers.
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The features and capabilities of the components provide the Avigilon system with the versatility to be 
configured and deployed in many different applications in a variety of industries. Avigilon also sells accessories 
to complement its system. 

Commercial sales of the Avigilon system began in December 2007.  Since 2008, the first full year of sales, 
revenues have experienced a compound annual growth rate (“CAGR”) in excess of 100%.  

The Avigilon system is sold through a network of resellers, all of which have been certified by Avigilon.  We do 
not sell our products direct to end-users or through online sales.  We complement and support our sales 
channel with our own sales and support staff, who work either directly with prospective end-user customers or 
in coordination with resellers to promote and help design surveillance systems and solutions that are tailored to 
specifically address the needs of the end-user.  This network of resellers provides us with a highly efficient 
global sales distribution network.

To date, Avigilon systems have been installed at over 20,000 customer sites in more than 80 countries, 
including school campuses, transportation systems, healthcare centres, public venues, critical infrastructure, 
prisons, factories, casinos, airports, financial institutions, government facilities and retailers.  

Selected Annual Information

The following table sets out selected consolidated financial information for the periods indicated. The selected 
financial information set out below has been derived from the consolidated financial statements. Each investor 
should read the following in conjunction with those statements thereto. 

Consolidated Statement of Operations (audited)

Year ended
December 31, 

2012
December 31, 

2011
December 31, 

2010
($ 000's)

Revenue 100,262 60,033 32,284

Costs of sales 50,844 32,576 17,713

Gross margin 49,418 27,457 14,571

Expenses 38,947 21,722 12,334

Operating income 10,471 5,735 2,237

Net income 7,169 3,829 964

Basic income per share 0.22 0.20 0.06

Diluted income per share 0.20 0.14 0.05

Preferred share dividend - 0.05 0.06

Common share dividend - - -

Total assets 86,971 42,954 19,724

Total liabilities 16,079 8,103 16,740

Shareholders’ equity 70,892 34,851 2,984
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Overall Performance

2012 was another strong year for Avigilon, with our results continuing the strong growth trend that we have 
seen since we began commercial sales in 2007.  Revenue for the year grew 67% from 2011, while net income 
in 2012 was nearly double the net income in the previous year.

The continued growth was a direct result of successfully executing on the plans for the year that we set out 
during our initial public offering in November 2011, namely:

1. Expanding our sales team into new regions and adding additional sales people in existing regions to 
increase our sales penetration;

2. Increasing the size of our product development team, to allow us to bring new products to market 
quicker; and

3. Enhancing our brand awareness through increased marketing and promotion.

In conjunction with these, our employee base grew significantly.  As of December 31, 2012 we had a total of 
255 employees, compared to 149 as of December 31, 2011.  New employees were added in all departments 
and all regions.

Number of Employees by Geographic Region
December 31, December 31, 

                 2012                2011

Canada 185               118
United States 32              18
United Kingdom 9                3
EMEA 25              9
Asia Pacific 1                0
Latin America 3                1
Total employees 255              149

During the year we focused the expansion of our sales team mainly into Eastern Europe, Latin America and the 
Middle East, while adding additional resources in North America, the UK and Western Europe.  We also began 
our expansion into Asia Pacific, with the hiring of a Senior Sales Director in Singapore in the third quarter of 
2012.  

2012 also saw continued hiring in Business Development, which focuses on enterprise-level sales in high-
growth vertical markets.  We began this sales group in late 2011 with the hiring of a business development 
director for casinos.  During the second quarter of 2012 we added a business development director to service 
Tyco Integrated Security, the largest buyer of surveillance in the world.  In late 2012 we added a Vice President 
of Global Business Development and business development directors for architects and engineers, energy and 
key strategic accounts such as Siemens, Johnson Controls and Convergint.  This group will contribute to a 
growing percentage of total revenue in 2013 and future years.

We released a number of new key products in 2012, including the H3 platform, our next generation of H.264 
cameras, and a pan-tilt-zoom (“PTZ”) camera.  We also announced the release of ACC 5.0, the fifth major 
release of our Avigilon Control Centre VMS, and a bullet camera.  The bullet camera began shipping in January 
2013 and ACC 5.0 is scheduled for release in the first half of 2013.

And finally, 2012 was a year of tremendous recognition for Avigilon.  Through the year we received a number of 
awards, including:

1. The fastest growing technology company in Canada on the Deloitte Technology Fast 50™;

2. The fastest growing software company in North America on the Deloitte Technology fast 500™, for the 
second year in a row;
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3. The Cantech TSX Tech Stock of the Year;

4. The Fastest Growing Technology Company in BC by Business in Vancouver; and

5. “Company of the Year” by the BC Technology Industry Association.

We have also achieved strong recognition within the financial community in Canada, culminating in a $26.5 
million equity financing in September 2012 that was oversubscribed and generated significant demand from 
institutional shareholders.

Selected Quarterly Results  

The following is a selected summary of quarterly results for the eight most recently completed quarters to 
December 31, 2012:

Selected Quarterly Results (unaudited)

2011 2012

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
($ 000's)

Revenue
  

10,034 
       

16,037 
       

15,109 18,853 17,754   24,350 25,508 
     

32,650 

Cost of Sales    5,637 
         

9,353 
         

8,252    9,334    9,260   12,690 12,542 
     

16,352

Gross Margin    4,397 
         

6,684 
         

6,857    9,519    8,494   11,660 12,966 
     

16,298

Expenses    3,930 
         

4,821 
         

5,579    7,392    7,595    9,911    9,492 
     

11,949

Operating Income       467
         

1,863 
         

1,278    2,127       899    1,749    3,474 
      

4,349

Net Income       121
         

1,078 
         

1,007    1,623       647    1,312    2,164 
      

3,046

Basic income per share      0.01 
           

0.06 
           

0.06      0.07      0.02      0.04      0.07 0.09

Diluted income per share      0.01 
           

0.04 
           

0.04      0.05      0.02      0.04      0.06 0.08

EBITDA(1)       609
         

2,071 
         

1,494    2,424    1,217    2,090    4,073 
     

5,325

Total assets
  

21,611 
       

27,083 
       

24,402 42,954 42,247   43,365 76,338
     

86,971

Total liabilities
  

18,488 
       

23,101 
       

19,402    8,103    6,560    5,928 10,635 
     

16,079

Shareholders’ equity    3,123 
         

3,982 
         

5,000 34,851 35,687   37,437 65,703
     

70,892

______________

(1) EBITDA is a non-IFRS financial measure. Please see the “EBITDA and Net Income” section for more information.

Discussion of Operations 

Revenue

Avigilon’s revenue is derived from the sale of high-definition, network-based video surveillance systems and 
equipment for the global security market. The Avigilon system and its components are promoted by Avigilon 
sales staff and sold through a global network of security installers and dealers (known as “Integrators”). 
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Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2012 was $100.3 million, an increase of 67% over revenue earned 
in the year ended December 31, 2011. Over the past five years, our revenue has had a compound annual 
growth rate (“CAGR”) of 109%.

Revenue growth continues to be due to increased product sales volumes worldwide, resulting from greater 
customer adoption in existing markets, our entry into new markets globally, and sales of new products 
introduced throughout the year. This is consistent with our focus on top-line growth to establish Avigilon as a 
leading innovative technology provider in the market.  

Revenue is earned in six main regions: Canada, United States, United Kingdom, EMEA (Europe, the Middle 
East and Africa combined), Asia Pacific and Latin America.  

Revenue by Geographic Region Year ended 
December 31, December 31, %

($ 000's)                  2012                2011 Growth

Canada 9,055               4,525 100%
United States 51,594              30,850 67%
United Kingdom 6,515                5,198 25%
EMEA 23,678              14,120 68%
Asia Pacific 5,304                3,088 72%
Latin America 4,116                2,252 83%
Total revenues 100,262              60,033 67%

Strong year-over-year revenue growth was experienced in most markets.  The most significant increases were 
experienced in the areas where we actively expanded sales staff over the past year.   

Quarterly revenue over the last eight quarters is presented in the table below:
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Quarterly Revenue 2011 2012
($ 000's) Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Canada 1,015 968 862 1,680 1,617 2,123 2,155 3,160
United States 4,821 8,754 7,492 9,782 9,254 12,896 12,788 16,656
United Kingdom 1,134 995 2,053 1,016 1,193 1,615 2,180 1,527
EMEA 2,041 4,003 3,481 4,595 4,158 5,885 5,430 8,205
Asia Pacific 700 691 642 1,055 706 1,235 1,734 1,629
Latin America 323 626 579 725 826 596 1,221 1,473
Total 10,034 16,037 15,109 18,853 17,754 24,350 25,508 32,650

Revenue has historically experienced some seasonality, with first and third quarters generally being flat to or 
slower than the second and fourth quarters. The slower first quarter is generally attributable to order delays as 
companies typically work to finalize their capital spending plans for the year while the slower third quarter has 
been due to the summer holiday season. The fourth quarter is generally the strongest quarter of the year.  

This was generally true in those markets where we have a longer sales history, such as Canada, the US, and 
larger areas of EMEA.  Regions that we have entered relatively recently, including Latin America, Asia Pacific 
and parts of EMEA, such as the Middle East and Eastern Europe, continue to see quarter-over-quarter growth 
despite the seasonal trends we experience.

Latin America experienced a 111% year-over-year increase in revenue in the third quarter 2012; however this 
was caused by a number of Q2 scheduled projects being delayed into Q3, as discussed in the second quarter. 
Normalizing Q2 and Q3, revenues in Latin America have increased quarter-over-quarter as we have increased 
the sales resources in that region.

Our UK sales fell in the fourth quarter of 2012 largely due to the impact of a number of larger orders that were 
delayed past Q4.  The UK market is one of the most highly competitive globally, due its acceptance of 
surveillance, and is experiencing a difficult economy currently.  However, we do not believe that the decrease 
in the fourth quarter is indicative of a decrease in the market for surveillance in the UK, nor of a decrease in the 
potential for Avigilon in this market, as we have seen a number of the delayed sales close in the first quarter to 
date and anticipate the majority of the others to close before the end of the quarter.

Sales in Asia Pacific also fell in the quarter, although only slightly.  This is primarily due to the impact of 
reorganizing our operations in the region in anticipation of building our own sales infrastructure.  Historically we 
have done business in Asia Pacific through an exclusive agent in the region.  During the fourth quarter we 
began to reorganize this structure as we began to develop our own sales team in the region, which had a 
slightly negative impact on sales in the period.  Although there may be some continuing short-term negative 
impacts, we believe that the new structure provide us with much better growth potential in Asia Pacific.   

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales is comprised of the cost of materials and components, manufacturing labour and overhead costs, 
inventory obsolescence provisions and write-offs, warranty costs, product transportation costs, and other 
supply chain management costs. Depreciation of assembly equipment and tooling is also included in cost of 
sales. To the extent that our sales increase, we expect cost of sales to also increase in absolute dollars; 
however cost of sales as a percentage of sales is expected to decrease over time due to a variety of factors 
including the introduction of new products, cost reductions from increased buying power and decreases in fixed 
costs as a percentage of revenue.  

Cost of sales for the year ended December 31, 2012 increased by $18.2 million, or 56%, compared to the 
previous year. The increase is generally due to the increased revenue; however as a percentage of revenue, 
cost of sales has fallen from 54% in 2011 to 51% in 2012.   This ratio has been gradually falling throughout the 
year, as can be seen in the following table.  
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2011 2012
($ 000's) Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Cost of sales 5,637 9,353 8,252 9,334 9,260 12,690 12,542 16,352

     % of revenue 56% 58% 55% 50% 52% 52% 49% 50%

This trend is largely due to a combination of sales mix moving towards more profitable products, lower costs 
resulting from the impact of greater economies of scale on purchasing and improved manufacturing 
efficiencies.  The high cost of sales in the second quarter of 2011 was driven by the impact of a $2.3 million 
enterprise sale, which was discounted more heavily than normal.

Cost of goods sold in the fourth quarter of 2011 was impacted by the effect of year-end adjustments of $0.4 
million that related to the full year of 2011.  After adjusting for these, the fourth quarter cost of sales was 
approximately 51% of revenue.  

Certain costs, such as bench tools and production facility rent, which were previously allocated to general and 
administrative expenses in prior periods, have been reallocated to cost of sales to conform with the current 
presentation in our financial statements.  The adjustments to previous quarters were as follows:

2011

($ 000's) Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total
Cost of sales per 2011 MD&A 5,605 9,319 8,207 9,263 32,394
Operations costs reallocated from 

G&A          32          34          45          71 182
Revised Cost of sales 5,637 9,353 8,252 9,334 32,576

The reallocated costs are direct costs of manufacturing and are more appropriately included in cost of sales.

Gross Margins

Gross margin for the year ended December 31, 2012 was $49.4 million, or 49%, of revenue. This compares to 
$27.5 million or 46% of revenue in 2011.  

Quarterly gross margin percentage continued to improve throughout the year, reflecting the lower cost of sales 
percentages discussed above.

Quarterly gross margin percentages were as follows:

2011 2012
(%) Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Gross margin with reallocation 44% 42% 45% 50% 48% 48% 51% 50%

After accounting for the year-end 2011 adjustments discussed above, the realized gross margin in the fourth 
quarter of 2011 was 49%.  

We believe that we have opportunities for improvements in gross margin in the medium term through the 
continued development and introduction of new products, increased buying power with our suppliers and 
through the continued adoption and expansion of the Avigilon brand.  However, as our near-term objective is 
rapid growth in revenue and market share, we do not anticipate any substantial increase gross margin 
percentage in the near term. 
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Selling and Marketing 

Selling and marketing expenses consist primarily of salaries and related expenses, advertising, trade shows 
and other promotional activities. 

Selling and marketing expenses for the year ended December 31, 2012 increased by $10.7 million, or 75%
from the year ended December 31, 2011.  

($ 000's) 2012 2011

Selling expenses 16,409 11,162

Marketing expenses 8,575 3,092

Total 24,984 14,254

Increased selling and marketing expenses year over year continue to be in line with our planned growth 
spending.

Selling expenses, which include sales salaries, commissions and direct sales expenses, increased $5.2 million
in 2012, or 47%, over expenses in the same period of 2011.  The increase is generally due to increased 
revenue, however selling expenses as a percentage of revenue have fallen to 16% from 19%.  This decrease is 
consistent with expectations of a decrease over time as we increase revenue, but we do anticipate that this will 
increase somewhat as a percentage of revenue in the short term due largely to the investment in business 
development during the fourth quarter of 2012, as discussed above.  

Marketing expenses in 2012 increased $5.5 million over expenses in the same period of last year.  This is a 
177% increase over 2011, however, as discussed in previous MD&A’s, we implemented a new marketing 
program at the end of the third quarter of 2011, designed to promote the Avigilon brand and support our
continuing revenue growth.  Annualizing the fourth quarter 2011 marketing expenses, the 2012 expenses were 
approximately 66% higher.

On a quarterly basis, selling and marketing expenses were as follows:

2011 2012

($ 000's) Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Selling expenses 2,169 2,614 2,714 3,665 3,341 3,828 3,673 5,567

Marketing expenses 346 537 919 1,290 1,313 3,099 2,341 1,822

Total 2,515 3,151 3,633 4,955 4,654 6,927 6,014 7,389

Similar to cost of sales, certain costs, such as marketing salary expenses and sales office rent, which were 
previously allocated to general and administrative expenses in prior periods have been reallocated to selling 
and marketing expenses to conform with the presentation in our financial statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2012.  Additionally, in the fourth quarter of 2012, we have reallocated the costs associated with 
our pre-sales field technical support team as a sales expense rather than an administrative expense.  The 
adjustments to amounts presented in previous quarters were as follows:
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2011 2012
($ 000's) Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3
Selling and Marketing per 2011 MD&A 2,273 2,792 3,224 4,487
Reallocation of sales admin costs from 

G&A 105 138 168 213

Stock based compensation 2 8 14 (24)
Selling and Marketing as per filings up to 

Q3 2012 2,380 2,938 3,406 4,676 4,342 6,550 5,596

Reallocation of pre-sales technical 
support costs from G&A 135 213 227 279 312 377 418

Revised Selling and Marketing 2,515 3,151 3,633 4,955 4,654 6,927 6,014

Quarterly selling expenses as a percentage of revenue have fallen from 22% in the first quarter of 2011 to 17%
in the fourth quarter of 2012.  Fourth quarter 2012 expenses were 17% of revenue, compared to 19% in the 
same period of 2011 and 14% in the third quarter of this year.  This increase from the third quarter was 
anticipated, as we indicated in the MD&A for the third quarter of this year.  As discussed in the Outlook section 
below, we will be continuing to expand our sales team throughout 2013, and we expect that sales expenses as 
a percentage of revenue will increase in the earlier part of the year and fall towards the end.  In the medium 
term we expect selling expenses to fall as a percentage of revenue, as revenue increased should outpace 
increases in selling expenses.

Selling expenses for the fourth quarter of 2012 included $0.7 million of year end incentive commissions paid to 
members of our sales team, compared to $0.7 million in the fourth quarter of 2011.  This program incentivizes 
our sales team to achieve sales levels significantly greater than their quotas, but as the amounts are dependent 
on the annual performance of each individual sales person we can’t reasonably estimate the amount payable 
until close to the end of the year.  As such, we record these expenses in the fourth quarter only.

For the year, total marketing was 9% of revenue in 2012, compared to 5% for 2011.  However, as discussed, 
the marketing program was implemented late in the third quarter of 2011, so this is not an equal comparison.  
Comparing to the fourth quarter of 2011 only, marketing has increased from 7% of revenue to the current 9%.  
This increase is consistent with our focus on continued sales growth and is the result of:

• Increased participation in over 50 industry trade shows and advertising in trade publications, promoting 
our products to end users and integrators;

• Direct mail campaigns to specific industry verticals and regions; 

• Advertising and promotion in new markets to increase brand awareness and support new sales efforts; 
and

• Advertising in business publications, such as Forbes, Bloomberg and the Economist, to increase our 
brand awareness at the decision-maker level, such as with Surveillance Directors, Chief Technical 
Officers, Chief Operations Officers, CEOs and CFOs. 

In the short term, we expect annual expenses to remain relatively the same as a percentage of revenue and
decrease over time as our revenue continues to grow.  Quarterly spending on marketing is generally seasonal, 
with the largest spending in the second quarter.  We anticipate the quarterly proportions in 2013 to be 
consistent with 2012. 

Research and Development

Research and development expenses consist primarily of salaries and related expenses for software, firmware 
and hardware engineering and technical personnel, as well as materials and consumables used in product 
development. The Company incurs most of its research and development expenses in Canada and is eligible 
to receive Scientific Research and Experimental Development investment tax credits for certain eligible 
expenditures. Investment tax credits are netted against the Company’s research and development expenses 
for financial statement presentation purposes. 
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Net research and development expenses for the year ended December 31, 2012 increased by $2.0 million, or 
66%, from the year ended December 31, 2011. Gross research and development expenditures were 
approximately 6.4% of sales in 2012, compared to 7% in 2011.  

($ 000's) 2012 2011

Gross R&D Expense 6,410 4,043

SRED Credit (1,366) (977)

R&D Expense 5,044 3,066

Gross research and development expenses have been increasing quarterly throughout the year, as follows:

2011 2012
($ 000's)    Q1    Q2      Q3      Q4      Q1      Q2      Q3     Q4

Gross R&D Expense 656 821 1,134 1,432 1,344 1,504 1,697 1,865

SRED Credit (136) (165) (329) (347) (276) (303) (450) (337)

Total 520 656 805 1,085 1,068 1,201 1,247 1,528

The growth in gross expenses was consistent with our plan to increase the size of our development team, but 
delays in planned hiring through the year resulted in expenses as a percent of revenue being lower than 
anticipate for the full year.  By December 31, 2012 we had essentially completed all planned research and 
development hiring for the year.

Research and development activities are a key factor in our ability to continue our growth, and we expect to
continue to increase expenses, as a percentage of revenue, to a level more typical with industry norms as we
focus on enhancing and expanding our product offerings.  As with selling and marketing expenses, research 
and development expenses are incurred in advance of the related revenue from new products.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses consist of costs relating to wages, information systems, legal and finance 
functions, professional fees, insurance and other corporate expenses. 

Administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2012 were $8.9 million, up from $4.5 million for the 
year ended December 31, 2011.

($ 000's) 2012 2011

Administrative 8,919 4,402
     % of revenue 9% 7%

The increase in administrative expenses was primarily due to additional personnel and their related expenses 
as a result of business growth, as well as in connection with becoming a public company in November 2011.
We expect our administrative expenses to increase to support planned growth; however, they will not continue 
to grow in proportion to the growth in revenue. Over time these expenses are expected to decrease as a 
percentage of revenue.

Quarterly administrative expenses were as follows:
2011 2012

($ 000's)    Q1    Q2      Q3      Q4      Q1      Q2      Q3     Q4

Administrative 895 1,015 1,141 1,351 1,872 1,783 2,232 3,032

% of revenue 9% 6% 8% 7% 11% 7% 9% 9%
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The quarterly growth in administrative expenses has been fairly even over the past two years as the Company 
has been steadily adding to the support function of the organization. The increase in the fourth quarter of 2012
was due in part to additional bonuses paid to staff and recruitment costs. 

As discussed above, certain costs have been reallocated from general and administrative to cost of sales and 
selling and marketing expenses, while certain amortization has been reallocated to general and administrative.  
These changes have been made to conform with the presentation in our current financial statements. The 
adjustments to previous quarters were as follows:

2011 2012
($ 000's) Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3
General and Administrative per 2011 MD&A 1,129 1,362 1,542 1,859 
Operation costs reallocated to Cost of 

Sales (32) (34) (45) (71)

Reallocation of sales admin costs to Selling 
and Marketing (105) (138) (168) (213)

Reallocation from Amortization 38 38 39 55
General and Administrative as per filings up 

to Q3 2012 1,030 1,228 1,368 1,630 2,184 2,160 2,650

Reallocation of pre-sales technical support 
costs to Selling and Marketing (135) (213) (227) (279) (312) (377) (418)

Revised General and Administrative 895 1,015 1,141 1,351 1,872 1,783 2,232

EBITDA and Net Income 

The term EBITDA refers to earnings before deducting interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization, foreign 
exchange gain or loss, and stock-based compensation. We believe that EBITDA is a useful measure as it 
provides an indication of the operational results of the business prior to taking into consideration how those 
activities are financed and taxed and also prior to taking into consideration asset amortization. EBITDA does 
not have a standardized meaning prescribed by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and is not 
necessarily comparable to similar measures provided by other companies. Accordingly, investors are cautioned 
that EBITDA should not be construed as an alternative to operating income or net income determined in 
accordance with IFRS as an indicator of the Company’s financial performance or as a measure of its liquidity 
and cash flows. 

EBITDA and net income for 2012 were almost twice that of amounts earned in the previous year, and have also 
increased as a percentage of revenue, as shown in the following table.  

($ 000's) 2012 2011

EBITDA
     

12,705       6,598
     % of revenue 13% 11%

Net Income       7,169
         

3,829
     % of revenue 7% 6%

EBITDA and net income grew quarter-over-quarter through 2012, continuing the trend from last year. 

2011 2012
($ 000's) Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

EBITDA
       

609
     

2,071 
     

1,494 
     

2,424 
     

1,217 
     

2,090 
     

4,073 5,325
     % of revenue 6% 13% 10% 13% 7% 9% 16% 16%

Net Income
       

121
     

1,078 
     

1,007 
     

1,623 
       

647
     

1,312 
     

2,164 3,046
     % of revenue 1% 7% 7% 9% 4% 5% 8% 9%
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Below is a reconciliation of EBITDA to net income:

($ 000's) 2012 2011
EBITDA 12,705       6,598 
Less:

Share based payments (1,178) (346)
Foreign exchange gain (loss) (193) 311   
Depreciation (874)       (428)
Interest expense (5)       (652)

Earnings before tax 10,455      5,483
Current and deferred income tax 
expense 3,286          1,654 
Net income 7,169          3,829 

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2012 was $7.2 million compared to net income of $3.8 million for 
the year ended December 31, 2011. Share based payments were higher in 2012 due largely to the issue of 
options during the latter part of the year.  Depreciation increased in 2012 in line with the additions to leasehold 
improvements and demo equipment. Interest expense represents interest paid on the credit facility and on 
preferred shares (which are classified as a liability under IFRS). The outstanding balance on our credit facility 
was paid in full in November 2011 with proceeds from our IPO and all outstanding preferred shares at the date
of the Company’s IPO were converted to common shares as part of the transaction.

2011 2012
($ 000's)    Q1    Q2    Q3    Q4    Q1     Q2     Q3    Q4
EBITDA 609 2,071 1,494 2,424 1,217 2,090 4,073 5,325
Less:

Share based payments (18) (78) (136) (114) (105) (120) (333) (620)
Foreign exchange gain (loss) (94) (62) 479 (12) (138) 94 (498) 349
Depreciation (106) (112) (66) (144) (182) (201) (247) (244)
Interest expense (170) (188) (207) (87) (1) (1) (3) -

Earnings before tax 221 1,631 1,564 2,067 791 1,862 2,992 4,810
Current and deferred income tax 
expense 100 553 557 444 144 550 828 1,764
Net income 121 1,078 1,007 1,623 647 1,312 2,164 3,046

Outlook

Global Surveillance Market

The security surveillance market is large and growing rapidly. The worldwide video surveillance systems 
market, which includes cameras, video management software, storage hardware, analog video encoders and 
related equipment, but excludes installation costs, is estimated to have been between US$11 billion and US$16 
billion in 2011, and is projected to increase to between US$21 billion and US$29 billion by 2015/20161. This is 
partly due to growth in customer adoption of new high-definition video surveillance systems.

The security video surveillance market today is fragmented, with no one producer commanding a dominant 
share of the market. According to IMS research in their report “The World Market for CCTV and Video 
Surveillance Equipment – 2012 Edition”, the 15 largest suppliers of video surveillance equipment accounted for 
only 43.5% of the market in 2011, and no company had more than a 5.9% share.

Within the market there is also a differentiation between camera manufacturers and video VMS providers.  
Many camera manufacturers do not offer a VMS solution.  Conversely, the large VMS companies do not 
manufacture cameras.  The result is that the various third party cameras and VMS systems are designed to 
work in an “open platform”.As of today there is no fully comprehensive global standard for connectivity between 
IP surveillance devices, which has led to complexity of integrating a series of third party cameras and VMS 
systems.

1 Source: ABI Research, The Video Surveillance Market, July 2010; IMS Research, The World Market for 
CCTV and Video Surveillance Equipment – 2012 Edition, May 2012
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Although surveillance cameras are only one component of a surveillance system, the growth of the IP (or 
digital) cameras is indicative of the projected conversion of the overall market from analog to digital.  As the 
chart below shows, the IP camera portion of the market is estimated to grow at over 49% compound annual 
growth rate (“CAGR”) from 2008 to 2015, while the closed circuit television (analog) camera portion is expected 
to decrease by 13% over the same period. It is this conversion that provides the greatest opportunity for 
Avigilon.

 

 
ABI Research, July 2010 

 

Avigilon Growth Strategy

We believe that our complete end-to-end, high-definition IP surveillance system, which includes our proprietary 
High-Definition Stream Management™ (“HDSM”) technology, provides a superior solution over other 
surveillance options.  As we design and manufacture all of the components to work together seamlessly, our 
system provides “plug and play” ease of installation and easy operation.  Additionally, our HDSM technology 
provides efficient management of the large amount of data generated from high-definition cameras, allowing us 
to produce the market’s broadest range of megapixel cameras and video storage and search capabilities that 
are greater than other products in the market.  We believe that these factors provide us with significant 
opportunities as the market grows and shifts from analog and analog/digital-hybrid systems to fully digital high-
definition IP surveillance systems.  

To capitalize on the market shift to IP, our strategy is to pursue organic growth opportunities to rapidly increase 
our market share.  In 2013 we will continue our successful strategy of expanding our sales team, enhancing 
marketing and brand awareness, and increasing research and development activities, as we strive towards our 
goal of $500 million in revenue by 2016.

1. Continued Expansion of Global Sales Resources

As discussed above, through 2012 we continued to invest in expanding our sales team globally, both in 
existing and new markets.  Within existing markets, we have added additional sales resources in key 
territories to allow us greater sales penetration.  In general this involves separating a successful territory 
into 2 or more territories and adding new sales managers for the new territories.  In such a situation, the 
new sales managers will report to the existing sales manager that developed the territory, and the group 
will work as a team to generate increased revenue from the area.  In 2012 we did this within Canada, the 
US, the UK and certain regions in Europe, the Middle East and Latin America.   We will continue this 
expansion in 2013.

We also entered a number of new markets in 2012, including Germany, Austria and Switzerland (known as 
the DACH region), Eastern Europe and parts of Latin America.  During the fourth quarter we began our 
expansion into Asia Pacific with the hiring of a Senior Sales Director in Singapore, who will be developing 
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the local sales team and channel partners for this region.  2013 will see us focusing largely on expanding 
within Asia Pacific, India and Latin America.

One of the key features of the expansion of our sales team is our new business development team, which 
is focused on large enterprise scale sales in high growth vertical market segments. The role of the 
business development department is to work with the larger resellers and end-users in these verticals to 
ensure that they understand our products’ capabilities and the value proposition of the Avigilon system, 
bringing in regional sales representatives to assist with closing individual sales. These large enterprise-
scale sales typically have much longer sales cycles and require a different sales strategy than our regional 
sales representatives employ for the smaller scale sales.

The business development team started in December 2011 with the hiring of a business development 
director for casinos, followed by the first of two business development directors for strategic accounts in the 
second quarter of 2012.  We added a number of key people in business development in the fourth quarter 
of 2012 and to date in 2013.  The group now includes a Vice President of Business Development plus five 
Business Development Directors covering:

1. Casinos;

2. Strategic Accounts,  such as Tyco Integrated Security, Siemens and Johnson Controls (two 
positions);

3. Architects and Engineers; and

4. Energy.

Through 2013 we will continue to add to this group for verticals such as retail, transportation, banking and 
government, among others.  We will also add business development resources in EMEA and Asia Pacific.

Although relatively new, the business development team has had a number of early successes.  
Throughout 2012 we had a number of sales to casino end users, and these continue in the first part of 
2013.  As of January 1, 2013 our system has been installed by 53 casino operators in 67 properties around 
the world, with a total of 10,420 channels of video running under our VMS.  Our largest casino sale in 2012 
was to the Hard Rock Casino & Hotel in Albuquerque, New Mexico, which included our ACC VMS, 250
Avigilon 4-channel analog video encoders and 200 Avigilon high-definition cameras. We have also seen 
success within the First Nations gaming within Canada and the US.  We are very pleased with the early 
results from our business development investment in the casino market and are encouraged by its 
continuing growth.

Another success for our business development team was earned in September when, through the efforts 
of our business development director for strategic accounts, Tyco Integrated Security (“Tyco”), the world’s 
largest dedicated fire protection and security company, approved Avigilon as part of their suite of products 
available for sale.  This resulted in:

• Avigilon products being included in Tyco’s pricing catalogs and internal sales website; and

• Tyco supporting our products internally through webinars and on-site training of their internal 
technical resources and multiple sales channels.

The rollout began in December 2012 and our products became available within Tyco’s internal ordering 
system in January 2013.  Although not a major contributor to our 2012 revenues, we anticipate that Tyco 
will contribute to a greater percentage of our revenue in 2013 and forward as we further execute on our 
plans. Our sales team is working closely with Tyco’s corporate office to educate their more than 69,000 
employees in 50 countries about the advantage Avigilon and our products, and we are seeing an 
increasing number of orders from Tyco every week. We are also working on similar arrangements with 
other large strategic accounts, which we will announce as they are completed.
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We also introduced an inside sales department in late 2012, based out of our Dallas office, which primarily 
makes outbound calls on sales leads that come through our website, trade shows, advertisements and 
direct mail campaigns.  To date this has been very successful in generating new sales and supporting our 
existing sales teams.  We will continue to add resources to inside sales during 2013.

2. Product Development

During the year we continued to evolve and expand our product line by adding new products and features:

• In March 2012 we released H3, our next generation H.264 camera platform. The H3 platform with 
enhanced HDSM provides unsurpassed image clarity requiring four times less bandwidth than the 
previous H.264 platform.  Initially we launched H3 in 3MP and 5MP resolutions, and followed this 
with 1MP and 2MP resolutions in June 2012.

• In August 2012 we expanded the H3 platform with the shipment of our first high-definition Pan-Tilt-
Zoom (“PTZ”) cameras, available in 1MP or 2MP resolution. The indoor and outdoor pendant PTZ 
cameras are targeted specifically at expansive areas with manned operations, such as large retail 
chains, airports, petrochemical, casinos, and city surveillance, among others.  Strengthened by the 
H3 platform, customers will benefit from lower bandwidth and storage requirements and are 
showing strong interest in the product. The global PTZ market is estimated to be worth over $1.3 
billion USD and the network PTZ form factor is forecasted to be one of the fastest growing security 
camera types towards 2016. Growth in excess of 25% year-on-year is projected for this category
globally.2  

• In September 2012, we demonstrated ACC 5.0, the fifth major release of our Avigilon Control 
Center VMS.  ACC 5.0 with HDSM technology unites the best from the IT, web design, and video 
game industries so security professionals can easily and intuitively manage video footage from 
unlimited analog and megapixel cameras.  New features include crash-proof enterprise server 
management, faster and easier collaborative investigations, and interactive video walls which 
allow casinos, airports, large campuses and enterprises the ability to identify and react to incidents 
faster. ACC 5.0 will be available in the second quarter 2013.

• In December 2012 we introduced our new HD bullet camera series.  With built-in adaptive infrared 
illumination, and available in outdoor 1MP, 2MP, 3MP and 5Mp resolutions, our HD bullet cameras
can see facial detail two times farther than average bullet cameras.  These cameras began 
shipping in January 2013 and are proving to be very popular.  

Product development plans for 2013 include a number of strategic feature and product additions.  These 
will be announced throughout the year when they ready for release.

3. Marketing and Brand Awareness

In addition to our product innovation, a new website was launched in August which combines real-life 
demonstrations, simple ease of use and innovative technologies to showcase Avigilon’s full suite of 
products.  The new website is a critical investment in future growth, as customers can now get a better 
understanding of our products online, resulting in an increased awareness of our product.  

We will also continue to invest in marketing and brand awareness through:

• industry and business media, with an additional focus on IT publications;

• participation in more than 55 trade shows around the world, covering a wide range of vertical 
markets; and

• direct mail campaigns for specific verticals, including casinos, retail, education, transportation, 
stadiums and integrators, among others. 

2 IMS Research, 2012
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These activities are targeted towards high-growth regions and industry verticals, and support the sales 
expansions discussed above.  In addition to increasing our brand awareness, they generate a large stream 
of new business leads for us.

4. Operations

Throughout the year we increased the efficiency of our existing robotic assembly line through additional 
equipment, as discussed in the capital expenditures section below. 

During the third quarter of 2012 we entered into a lease for approximately 14,400 square feet of additional 
space contiguous to our existing manufacturing plant, effective November 2012.  This effectively increases 
our manufacturing space by approximately 150% over our current facility.  The expansion allows us to 
reconfigure our facility, particularly our assembly operations, for better efficiency and provides sufficient 
room for future growth.  Total capital costs related to the expansion are approximately $0.8 million, 
including $0.2 million for a new front office. Construction will be complete by the end of the first quarter of 
2013.

We estimate that the better operating efficiencies from this expansion and reconfiguration, along with 
adding a night production shift per day, will provide a 25%-plus increase in our production capacity.   While 
we have no plans in the near future to add a second robotic assembly line for circuit board production, the 
expanded facility will have sufficient capacity for this.

We believe that the combination of the expansion of these four major areas of our business will contribute to 
further revenue growth. However, as the necessary investments are incurred in advance of the revenue 
generation, there may be pressure on profitability in the short term.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We define capital as debt plus shareholders’ equity.  Our objectives when managing capital is to provide 
sufficient resources to meet day-to-day operating requirements, allow us to enhance product offerings as well 
as develop new ones and to have the financial ability to expand the size of its operations by taking on new 
customers. In managing our capital structure, we take into consideration various factors, including the growth of 
our business and related infrastructure and the up-front cost of taking on new customers. Our officers and 
senior management are responsible for managing capital and do so through quarterly meetings and regular 
review of financial information. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing this process. 
We manage our resources while maximizing the return on shareholders through the optimization of debt and 
equity balances.  
We are not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Year ended December 31
(audited)

($ 000’s) 2012 2011
Current Assets 81,568 38,629
Current Liabilities 15,681 7,824
Working Capital 65,887 30,805

As at December 31, 2012 we had working capital of $65.9 million, compared to $30.8 million as at December 
31, 2011. The increase came from cash generated from operations and proceeds from new share issues, 
including exercise of employee stock options.

On September 6, 2012, the Company issued 3,593,750 shares at a price of $6.40 per share for gross proceeds 
of $23.0 million, pursuant to the terms of an underwriting agreement (the “Underwriting Agreement”) dated 
August 17, 2012 between the Company and a syndicate of underwriters. On September 20, 2012 the Company 
issued a further 539,062 shares at $6.40 per share under the over-allotment option granted to the underwriters 
pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement. Total gross proceeds to the Company after the over-allotment option 
were $26.5 million. The Company paid the underwriters a fee equal to 5% of the total gross proceeds.  Total 
costs of the issue, including the underwriting fee, were $1.75 million. The use of proceeds from the financing is 
consistent with the anticipated use as outlined in the short form prospectus for the offering.



20 Avigilon Corporation | Annual Report 2012 17

In addition to available working capital we have a $12.0 million revolving demand loan (the “Operating Loan”) 
from a Canadian Chartered Bank, which is secured by a general security agreement providing a first charge 
over all assets of Avigilon.  This facility bears interest at the bank’s prime plus 0.5% per annum for Cdn$ funds 
and US Base Rate plus 0.5% per annum for US$ funds. The overall credit facilities also includes a $10.0 
million demand revolving line (the “Foreign Exchange Loan”) to allow us to purchase foreign exchange 
contracts up to an aggregate notional value of $31.25 million with a maximum maturity of 12 months, in order to 
hedge against currency fluctuations in our operations.  As at December 31, 2012, and February 8, 2013 
nothing was drawn on the credit facility and both the Operating Loan and the Foreign Exchange Loan are fully 
available.

Our working capital needs will continue to grow with sales growth. We believe that our ongoing operations and 
associated cash flow, in addition to our cash resources and revolving credit facility, will provide sufficient 
liquidity to continue financing our planned growth in the near term, and that we will have access to additional 
debt and equity capital as we grow to support further expansion.

Contractual Obligations

In the normal course of business, we enter into contracts that give rise to commitments for future minimum 
payments. All of the Company’s financial liabilities have contractual maturities of 30 days or are due on 
demand and are subject to normal trade terms. 

The following table sets forth the Company’s contractual obligations as of December 31, 2012: 

($ 000’s) 2013 2014 2015 2016 Thereafter Total
Facility lease obligations 2,180 2,147 1,962 1,815 1,285 9,389

Trade and other payables 13,962 13,962

Accrued liabilities 1,610 1,610
Total 17,752 2,147 1,962 1,815 1,285 24,961

Capital Expenditures

We incurred capital expenditures of $2.2 million during the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to $1.3
million in the year ended December 31, 2011. The main expenditures for the year were:

1. additional demonstration gear provided to the sales team, for both new products released and 
additions to the sales team ($0.8 million);

2. new marketing equipment used in conjunction with attendance at trade shows ($0.2 million);

3. new automation equipment for the manufacturing facility ($0.6 million);

4. leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment for our corporate office and our new global sales 
office in Dallas, Texas ($0.3 million); and

5. leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment related to the expansion of our manufacturing facility 
in Richmond, BC ($0.3 million).  

Two new pieces of automated robotic equipment were installed at the manufacturing facility during the third 
quarter; a selective solder machine and a high speed circuit board component placement machine (known as a 
“pick and place”). The selective solder machine replaces hand soldering for fixing larger components into 
printed circuit boards and increases the throughput of this process from approximately 12 boards per hour to 
approximately 120 boards per hour.  The “pick and place” machine automatically selects and places 
components onto printed circuit boards.  The new machine has the capacity to place 60,000 parts per hour, 
compared to 12,000 parts per hour for the component it replaced.  The older component is being refurbished 
and stored for future use as part of any expansion line that we may require as we grow. In 2013 we will 
continue to investigate new equipment to improve the efficiency of the Richmond manufacturing facility.  
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Although we plan to continue to invest in capital equipment as necessary to support our growth, our business is 
not overly capital intensive.  As at December 31, 2012 we have no formal commitments for additional capital 
expenditures other than for the completion of the expansion of our Richmond manufacturing facility; however, 
we do anticipate our capital expenditures growing as our business grows.  

Capital Structure

As of the date of this management discussion and analysis, the Company has outstanding 38,292,299 common 
shares and no preferred shares. On November 8, 2011, in accordance with the shareholder agreement and the 
Company’s IPO, all preferred shares were converted to common shares. At that time all cumulative dividends 
were paid in cash to preferred shareholders.

Common 
shares

Balance, December 31, 2011 31,021,287 
Issuance of common stock       6,684,512 
Balance, December 31, 2012     37,705,799 
Issuance of common stock 586,500
Balance, February 28, 2013 38,292,299

We maintain a stock option plan that enables us to grant options to its directors, officers, employees and other 
service providers. The plan allows for a maximum grant of 18% of issued and outstanding shares in aggregate. 
Each option agreement with the grantee sets forth, among other things, the number of options granted, the 
exercise price and the vesting conditions of the options. The options vest between 0 and 60 months from the 
date of grant and have a maximum term of five years.   

Prior to our IPO, we had a fixed stock option plan which had similar terms but capped the total stock options 
available for issue at 5,500,000 common shares. All stock options issued under the old plan were converted to 
the new plan upon closing of the IPO.

The changes in stock options during the year ended December 31, 2012 and year ended December 31, 2011
were as follows:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Average Average 

Number of exercise Number of exercise 
options price options price 

$ $
Outstanding, beginning of period 5,380,600        1.20 5,183,100        1.03

Options granted 1,372,500     6.59           413,500        3.28
Options exercised (2,551,700)                1.00             -   
Options forfeited    (50,000) 3.45          (216,000)        1.08

Outstanding, end of period 4,151,400        3.08 5,380,600        1.20

Exercisable, end of period 2,521,025        1.21 4,954,600        1.07

The outstanding options expire over the next five years, as follows:

(000's) 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Stock Option Expiration        2,030     116        255        390        1,359
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had no off-balance sheet arrangements, other than operating leases
(which have been disclosed under Contractual Obligations), that have, or are reasonably likely to have, a 
current or future material effect on its consolidated financial position, financial performance, liquidity, capital 
expenditures or capital resources.

Transactions with Related Parties

(a) Trading Transactions

Our related parties consist of companies owned by directors.  We generated sales of $0.3 million and 
incurred expenses of $0.05 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 in the normal course of 
business with companies owned by directors, compared with sales of $0.2 million and expenses of 
$Nil for the same period last year. We had a receivable balance of $0.07 million and a payable balance 
of $0.01 million with related parties at December 31, 2012 (2011 - Receivable - $0.04 million, Payable 
- $Nil).

(b) Compensation of Key Management Personnel

Remuneration for key management personnel during the period was as follows:

Year ended
December 31

($ 000's) 2012 2011

Short term benefits
         

1,846
         

1,741
Share based payments            421          244
Total 2,267         1,985

Key management personnel are comprised of our executive officers and directors.  The remuneration 
of key management personnel is determined by the Compensation and Corporate Governance 
Committee having regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.

Year ended
December 31, 

($ 000's) 2012 2011

Wages and salaries       2,249
         

1,969
Benefits            18            16
Total       2,267 1,985
Less expensed in:

Sales and marketing          550         524
Research and development 396          414
General and administrative       1,321      1,047

Employee compensation included in cost of sales            -              -   

Financial Instruments and Other Instruments

Our financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, deposits, trade and other receivables and trade 
and other payables. The carrying values of these financial instruments approximate their fair values because of 
the short-term nature of these instruments.
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Derivative financial instruments

We enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to minimize exposure to foreign currencies. These derivative 
contracts are categorized as financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), and have not 
been designated in hedge accounting relationships.  During the year ending December 31, 2012, the Company 
entered into various forward foreign exchange contracts and all were settled before December 31, 2012. The 
value of derivative financial instruments as at December 31, 2012 is $Nil (2011 - $0.09 million).

Financial risk management

We manage exposure to financial risks, including credit risk, liquidity risk, currency risk, price risk and interest 
rate risk, in accordance with our Risk Management Policy. The Company’s Board of Directors oversees 
management’s risk management practices by setting trading parameters and reporting requirements. The Risk 
Management Policy provides a framework for the Company to manage the risks it is exposed to in various 
markets and to protect itself against adverse price movements. All transactions undertaken are to support the 
Company’s ongoing business. The Company does not acquire or issue derivative financial instruments for 
trading or speculative purposes.

The following describes the types of risks that the Company is exposed to and its objectives and policies for 
managing those risk exposures.

Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the Company 
by failing to discharge its obligations. Credit risk is primarily associated with trade and other receivables due to 
uncertainties as to the timing and amount of collectability of trade and other receivables; however, it also arises
on cash and cash equivalents and derivative assets. To mitigate exposure to credit risk on financial assets, we
have established policies to limit the concentration of credit risk, to ensure counterparties demonstrate 
minimum acceptable credit worthiness and to ensure liquidity of available funds.

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited because we invest our cash and cash equivalents in
chartered banks with high credit-ratings assigned by national credit-rating agencies in accordance with our
investment policy and the credit risk associated with these assets is considered to be low.

The amounts disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position with respect to trade and other 
receivables are net of an allowance for doubtful accounts, estimated based on previous experience and our
assessment of the current economic environment. We mitigate credit risk through credit and reference checks.

At December 31, 2012, the aging of trade receivables were:

December 31, December 31, 

($ 000's)                 2012                 2011
Trade 

Current 15,160 9,924

Aged between 61 - 119 days 1,884                   2,023
Aged greater than 120 days 380                   226

Total trade 17,424                12,173
Other receivables 1,242                   1,248

18,666                13,421
Allowance for doubtful accounts (213)                    (130)

Trade and other receivables 18,453                13,291
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A reconciliation of allowance for doubtful accounts is as follows:

December 31, December 31, 

($ 000's)                 2012                 2011
Balance, beginning of year 130 77
Increase during of year 148 85
Bad debts recovered during the year (22) -

Bad debts written off during the year (43) (32)

Balance, end of year 213 130

The carrying amounts of financial assets on the consolidated statement of financial position represent our
maximum credit exposure at the statement of financial position date. 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with 
financial liabilities. We manage our liquidity risk to ensure that we will have sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities 
when due by monitoring cash flows and both short term and long term obligations. We ensure that working 
capital, defined as current assets less current liabilities, remains positive and cash flows from operations are 
reasonable based on operations.

We also ensure that sufficient credit facilities are available to the Company should it be required to meet 
obligations when they come due or where appropriate.

At December 31, 2012, we held cash and cash equivalents of $49,859 (2011 - $12,418). During the year ended 
December 31, 2012, we generated cash flows from operations of $12,326 (2011 - $3,434 cash flows used). 

In July 2012, we replaced our existing $8,000 revolving demand credit facility with a new $12,000 demand 
revolving credit facility. During the year ended December 31, 2012, no funds were drawn on this facility. See 
Note 11 to the audited consolidated financial statements for further details.

In the normal course of business, we enter into contracts that give rise to commitments for future minimum 
payments. All of our financial liabilities have contractual maturities of 30 days or are due on demand and are 
subject to normal trade terms. Commitments for future minimum payments beyond one year relate to lease 
agreements and at December 31, 2012, the Company does not have any commitments for capital 
expenditures.

Market risk 

Market risk is the risk of loss that may arise from changes in market factors such as foreign exchange rates, 
commodity and equity prices, and interest rates. 

(i) Currency risk 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair values or future cash flows of our financial instruments will 
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Exchange rate fluctuations may affect the 
revenues as we earn a significant portion of its revenues in the United States dollar (“U.S.”), the Great 
Britain Pound (“GBP”), the Euro (“EUR”), and the United Arab Emirates Dirham (“AED”). The 
appreciation of the Canadian dollar against non-Canadian dollar currencies can decrease our 
revenues in Canadian dollar terms. We also hold cash and cash equivalents that are denominated in 
non-Canadian dollar currencies which are subject to currency risk. 

The following table details the sensitivity of our results to a 10% decrease in the value of the Canadian 
dollar against the relative foreign currencies. This analysis is based on foreign currency exchange rate 
variances that we considered to be reasonably possible at the end of the reporting period. It includes 
only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the 
period end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates. A positive value below indicates an increase in 
profit. A strengthening of the Canadian dollar by the same amount would have a comparable negative 
affect on profit. The impact on equity is the same as the impact on profit before tax.
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December 31, December 31, 
($ 000's)                    2012                    2011

US Dollar 2,149 1,385
Great Britain Pound 206                      231
Euro 466 289
Emirati Dirham 8                         3   

During the year ended December 31, 2012 we entered into foreign exchange contracts on a limited 
basis to hedge against gains or losses from foreign exchange fluctuations. We plan to more actively
manage our currency risk in 2013.

(ii) Price risk 

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of our financial instruments will fluctuate 
because of changes in market prices of component parts and supplies used in manufacturing. We do
not enter into contracts to hedge against gains or losses from changes in component parts and 
supplies.  We manage our price risk through multiple, competitive supplier arrangements and 
maintaining a sufficient stock of single-source and long lead time items to weather any temporary 
supply disruptions. .

(iii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair values and future cash flows of the Company will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. We have limited exposure to changing interest rates as 
we have no outstanding bank loans.

Critical Accounting Estimates

We adopted IFRS effective on January 1, 2010 and the consolidated financial statements for the year ending 
December 31, 2012 have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (“IASB”) and its interpretations. The application of IFRS requires that we make estimates that 
affect its reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingencies at the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. We base our
estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under 
the circumstances. We evaluate our estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis. Actual results may differ 
significantly from these estimates.

The significant accounting policies and estimates are discussed below:

• Warranty Reserve – A provision for future potential product warranty costs is included in cost of goods 
sold based primarily on prior warranty experience regarding cost of claims and expected product 
returns. These future product warranty costs include costs associated with repair or replacement of 
products returned under warranty.  Actual future costs in support of these claims may differ from those 
estimates. We review the provision quarterly and adjust it prospectively.  The total provision as at 
December 31, 2012 was $0.3 million, which has increased from the December 31, 2011 provision of 
$0.1 million.  This increase resulted from the additional reserve for year to date sales and minimal 
claims on warranties during the year.

• Valuation of inventory – We evaluate inventory balances at each statement of financial position date 
and record a provision as necessary for excess or obsolete inventory (“E&O Reserve”). In performing 
this review we consider such factors as forecasted sales, demand requirements, product lifecycle and 
product development plans, quality issues, and current inventory levels.  If future demand or market 
conditions for our products are less favourable than forecasted or if unforeseen technological changes 
occur, we may be required to record write-downs which would negatively affect gross margins in the 
period when the write-downs are recorded and our operating results and financial position could be 
adversely affected.  At December 31, 2012 our E&O Reserve was $0.1 million, compared to $0.05 
million at December 31, 2011.  During 2012 we applied claims of $0.1million against our reserve.
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• Allowance for doubtful accounts – We record an allowance for doubtful accounts related to trade 
accounts receivable.  This allowance is based on knowledge of the financial condition of our 
customers, the aging of the receivables, the current business environment and historical experience.  
A change in one or more of these factors could impact the estimated allowance and provision for bad 
debts recorded.  At December 31, 2012, our allowance for doubtful accounts was $0.2 million, 
compared to $0.1 million at December 31, 2011. During the year we wrote off $0.04 million of accounts 
as uncollectible and recovered $0.02 million of accounts previously written off.

• Valuation of deferred income tax and investment tax credit assets – As at December 31, 2012, we 
have recorded a deferred income tax asset of $1.1 million, which reflects deferred tax deductions 
available against taxable income.  We have also recorded refundable investment tax credits of $1.4
million from research and development activities, which are credited against income tax.  The
calculation of our deferred income tax and investment tax credit assets involves dealing with 
uncertainties in application of complex tax laws and regulations as well as assessing the probability of 
future realization.  It is also possible that tax audits may result in potential reductions of assets and that 
such adjustments may materially affect the amounts reported for deferred income tax and investment 
tax credit assets.

Changes in Accounting Policies

Financial Instruments – Disclosures

The International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) issued an amendment to IFRS 7, “Financial 
Instruments: Disclosures” requiring increased disclosure requirements regarding transfers of financial assets,
effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2011. We applied the amendment at the beginning of 
the 2012 financial year and implementation did not have a significant impact on disclosures.

Deferred Taxes – Recovery of Underlying Assets

The IASB issued amendments to IAS 12, “Income Taxes” (the “IAS 12 amendment”), that provide an exception 
to the general principles in IAS 12 that the measurement of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 
should reflect the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the entity expects to recover 
the carrying amount of an asset. Specifically, under the amendments, investment properties that are measured 
using the fair value model in accordance with IAS 40 Investment Property are presumed to be recovered 
through sale for the purposes of measuring deferred taxes, unless the presumption is rebutted in certain 
circumstances. This amendment was effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2012, and as 
such we applied the amendment to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 
2012. The impact of this amendment was not significant.

Future Changes in Accounting Policies

Amendments to IAS 1 on presentation of items of other comprehensive income

The amendments retain the option to present profit or loss and other comprehensive income either in one 
continuous statement or in two separate but consecutive statements. Items of other comprehensive income are 
required to be grouped into those that will and will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Tax on 
items of other comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same basis. The measurement and 
recognition of items of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not affected by the amendments. We 
do not expect the amendments to IAS 1 to have a material impact on the financial statements.

Financial Instruments – Classification and Measurement

IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments, addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets 
and financial liabilities. IFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and October 2010. It replaces the parts of IAS 39 
that relate to the classification and measurement of financial instruments. IFRS 9 requires financial assets to be
classified into two measurement categories: those measured as at fair value and those measured at amortized
cost. The determination is made at initial recognition. Where the fair value option is taken, the part of a fair 
value change due to an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in other comprehensive income rather than the 
income statement, unless this creates an accounting mismatch. IFRS 9 is to be applied for annual periods 
beginning on or after January 1, 2015.  Earlier application is permitted.  We do not expect IFRS 9 to have a 
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Financial Statements 

IFRS 10 – Consolidated Financial Statements, builds on existing principles by identifying the concept of control 
as the determining factor in whether an entity should be included within the consolidated financial statements of 
the parent company. The standard provides additional guidance to assist in the determination of control where 
this is difficult to assess. IFRS 10 is to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.  
Earlier application is permitted.  We do not expect IFRS 10 to have a material impact on the consolidated 
financial statements.

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IFRS 12 – Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities, is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that 
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates or unconsolidated structured entities. IFRS 12 
establishes disclosure objectives and specifies minimum disclosures that entities must provide to meet those 
objectives. The objective of IFRS 12 is that entities should disclose information that helps users of financial 
statements evaluate the nature of and risks associated with its interests in other entities and the effects of 
those interests on their financial statements. IFRS 12 is to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 
January 1, 2013.  Earlier application is permitted.  We do not expect IFRS 12 to have a material impact on the 
consolidated financial statements.

Fair Value Measurements

IFRS 13 defines fair value, establishes a single IFRS framework for measuring fair value and requires 
disclosures about fair value measurements.  IFRS 13 applies to IFRSs that require or permit fair value 
measurements or disclosures about fair value measurements (and measurements, such as fair value less costs 
to sell, based on fair value or disclosures about those measurements), except in specified circumstances.  
IFRS 13 is to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.  Earlier application is 
permitted.  We do not expect IFRS 13 to have a material impact on the financial statements.

Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures and Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

Disclosure controls and procedures have been designed to provide reasonable assurance that all relevant 
information is identified to our President and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer 
(“CFO”) and our Disclosure Committee to ensure appropriate and timely decisions are made regarding public 
disclosure.

Internal controls over financial reporting have been designed by management, under the supervision of, and 
with the participation of our CEO and CFO, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of our
financial reporting and its preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with IFRS.

We will file certifications, signed by our CEO and CFO, with the Canadian Securities Administrators (“CSA”) 
upon filing of our Annual Information Form. In those filings, our CEO and CFO will certify, as required by 
National Instrument 52-109, the appropriateness of the financial disclosure, the design and effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures and the design and effectiveness of internal controls over financial 
reporting. Our CEO and CFO also certify the appropriateness of the financial disclosures in our interim filings 
with securities regulators. In those interim filings, our CEO and CFO also certify the design of the Corporation’s 
disclosure controls and procedures and the design of internal controls over financial reporting.

The Company’s Audit Committee reviewed this MD&A and the audited consolidated financial statements, and 
the Board of Directors approved these documents prior to their release.

Management’s Report on Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Management, under the supervision of and with the participation of the Corporation's CEO and CFO, evaluated 
the effectiveness of the Corporation's disclosure controls and procedures (as defined under National 
Instrument 52-109) and concluded, as at December 31, 2012, that such disclosure controls and procedures 
were effective.
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Management’s Report on Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

Management, under the supervision of and with the participation of our CEO and CFO, evaluated the
effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting (as defined under National Instrument 52-109). In 
making this evaluation, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commissions (“COSO”) in Internal Control - Integrated Framework. Based on that evaluation,
management and the CEO and CFO have concluded that, as at December 31, 2012, the Corporation’s internal 
controls over financial reporting were effective. 

This evaluation took into consideration our Corporate Disclosure and Trading Policy and the functioning of our
Disclosure Committee.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes to our internal controls over financial reporting during the year ended December 
31, 2012 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, internal controls over
financial reporting.

Consolidated financial statements of

Avigilon Corporation
For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
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Management’s Report on Internal Controls over Financial Reporting
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February 28, 2013

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Avigilon Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Avigilon Corporation and its subsidiaries,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2012 and the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes, which comprise a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audit is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Avigilon Corporation and its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2012 and their financial performance and their cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Other matter
The financial statements of Avigilon Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2011, were audited by another
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on February 29, 2012.

Signed “PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP”

Chartered Accountants

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers Place, 250 Howe Street, Suite 700, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada V6C 3S7
T: +1 604 806 7000, F:+1 604 806 7806, www.pwc.com/ca

“PwC” refers to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an Ontario limited liability partnership.
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Avigilon Corporation
Consolidated statements of comprehensive income 
For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars except number of shares and per share data)

Year ended
December 31, December 31,

Note                     2012                   2011
$ $

Sales 100,262 60,033
Cost of sales (50,844) (32,576)

49,418 27,457

Operating expenses 5
Selling and marketing 24,984 14,254
Research and development 5,044 3,066
General and administrative 8,919 4,402

38,947 21,722

Operating income 10,471 5,735

Other income (expense)
Accretion expense - (470)
Interest and other, net 177 (93)
Foreign exchange gain (loss) (193) 311

(16) (252)

Income before income taxes 10,455 5,483
Current tax expense 10(b) (2,292) (602)
Deferred tax expense 10(b),(c) (994) (1,052)
Net income and total comprehensive income 7,169 3,829

Earnings per share 13(d)
Basic 0.22 0.20
Diluted 0.20 0.14

Weighted average number of shares outstanding (000's) 13(d)
Basic 32,994 19,234
Diluted 35,223 30,770

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Avigilon Corporation
Consolidated statements of financial position
As at December 31, 2012 and 2011
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars except number of shares and per share data)

December 31, December 31,
Note 2012 2011

$ $
Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 49,859 12,418
Trade and other receivables 15(a) 18,453 13,291
Inventories      6 11,906 11,254
Derivative financial instruments      15 - 88
Prepaid expenses 1,283 605
Investment tax credits 10(a) - 973

81,501 38,629
Non-current assets

Property and equipment      7 3,669 2,304
Intangible assets 43 46
Deposits and prepaid expenses      8 613 272
Deferred tax assets    10(c) 1,145 1,703

86,971 42,954

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables    9 15,572 7,765
Short-term leasehold incentive    12 109 59

15,681 7,824
Non-current liabilities

Long-term leasehold incentive    12 398 279
16,079 8,103

Shareholders' equity
Capital stock    13 66,559 37,251
Equity compensation reserve 3,663 4,099
Surplus (deficit) 670 (6,499)

70,892 34,851
86,971 42,954

Commitments – Note 12

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Approved by the Board and authorized for issue on February 28, 2013.

“signed” “signed”
Alexander Fernandes, Director Bruce Marginson, Director
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Avigilon Corporation
Consolidated statements of financial position
As at December 31, 2012 and 2011
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars except number of shares and per share data)
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Note 2012 2011
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Intangible assets 43 46
Deposits and prepaid expenses      8 613 272
Deferred tax assets    10(c) 1,145 1,703

86,971 42,954

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables    9 15,572 7,765
Short-term leasehold incentive    12 109 59

15,681 7,824
Non-current liabilities

Long-term leasehold incentive    12 398 279
16,079 8,103

Shareholders' equity
Capital stock    13 66,559 37,251
Equity compensation reserve 3,663 4,099
Surplus (deficit) 670 (6,499)

70,892 34,851
86,971 42,954

Commitments – Note 12

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Approved by the Board and authorized for issue on February 28, 2013.

“signed” “signed”
Alexander Fernandes, Director Bruce Marginson, Director

6

Avigilon Corporation
Consolidated statements of changes in equity
For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars except number of shares and per share data)

Equity Total

Common Stock compensation shareholders’

Shares Amount reserve Deficit Equity

$ $ $ $

Balance, January 1, 2011 17,248,202 9,559 3,753 (10,328)             2,984

Net income and total comprehensive income               -                  -                  - 3,829             3,829

Share issue costs                 - (3,022)                  -                  -           (3,022)

Share-based payments                 -                -             346                  -               346

Conversion of preferred shares 9,148,639 9,149                  -                  -            9,149

Issuance of common stock 4,624,446 20,810                  -                  - 20,810 

Deferred income tax effect on share                          
issuance cost - 755 - - 755

Balance, December 31, 2011 31,021,287 37,251 4,099 (6,499) 34,851

Net income and total comprehensive income - - - 7,169 7,169

Share issue costs - (1,745) - - (1,745)

Share-based payments - - 1,178 - 1,178

Issuance of common stock 6,684,512 29,003 - - 29,003

Transfer to capital stock on exercise of options - 1,614 (1,614) - -

Deferred income tax effect on share                          
issuance cost - 436 - - 436

Balance, December 31, 2012 37,705,799 66,559 3,663 670 70,892

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Avigilon Corporation
Consolidated statements of cash flows
For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars except number of shares and per share data)

Year ended 

December 31, December 31, 
Note 2012                 2011

$ $
Cash flows from operating activities

Net income for the year 7,169 3,829
Adjustments for non-cash items

Depreciation 874                  428
Lease incentives recognized 239 -
Lease incentives amortized (70) (5)
Write off of property and equipment -                  102
Share-based payments 1,178                  346

    Accretion expense -                  470
Deferred tax expense 10(b),(c) 994 1,052
Current tax expense 10(c) 2,292 602
Investment tax credits 10(a) (1,366) (937)
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain) loss (198)            (156)
Change in fair value of derivative financial asset 88 -
Interest expense (income) (177)                   93

11,023 5,824
Movements in working capital

(Increase) in trade and other receivables (5,030)              (5,274)
(Increase) in inventories    (652)              (5,947)
(Increase) in prepaid expenses and deposits (1,020)                 (543)
(increase) decrease in investment tax credits 997                 (394)
Increase in trade and other payables    8,057 3,127

Net movements in working capital 2,352 (9,031)
Interest (paid) received 177                  (93) 
Income taxes paid (1,226)                 (134)

Net cash used in operating activities 12,326              (3,434)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment (2,231)              (1,306)
Disposal of property and equipment 33                       -
Purchase of intangible assets (39)                   (52)

Net cash used in investing activities (2,237)              (1,358)

Cash flows from financing activities
(Repayment of) proceeds from bank loan     -              (1,760) 
Issuance of common stock   13 29,003              20,810 
Share issuance costs (1,746)              (2,551)
Dividends paid on redeemable preferred shares -              (1,658)

Net cash provided by financing activities 27,257 14,841 
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash 95                    39
Increase in cash 37,441             10,088
Cash, beginning of year 12,418                2,330 
Cash, end of year 49,859              12,418 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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1. Nature of operations

Avigilon Corporation (the “Company”) is incorporated under the Canadian Business Corporations Act 
and its principal business is developing, manufacturing, marketing and selling high definition 
surveillance systems.  

The Company’s head office is located at Suite 400 - 858 Beatty Street, Vancouver, British Columbia,
Canada V6B 1C1. The Company’s registered and records office is located at Suite 2900, 550 Burrard 
Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada V6C 0A3.

2. Basis of presentation and statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). 

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on February 
28, 2013.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, under the 
historical cost convention, except for derivative financial instruments which are measured at fair value 
through profit or loss. Certain prior period balances have been reclassified to conform to the 
presentation adopted in the current period including the reclassification of $1,659 from General and 
Administrative to Costs of Sales ($182) and Selling and Marketing ($1,477).

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The Company’s significant accounting policies are outlined below:  

(a) Basis of consolidation 

The Company consolidates subsidiaries controlled by the Company. Control exists when the 
Company has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of 
an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities, and generally accompanies a shareholding 
of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights 
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the 
Company controls another entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the 
consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that 
control ceases.

These consolidated financial statements include the following subsidiaries:

Name Place of incorporation 
Ownership 

interest
Avigilon UK Ltd. United Kingdom 100%

Avigilon ME DMCC Dubai, United Arab Emirates 100%

Omnikon Technologies Ltd. British Columbia, Canada 100%

Avigilon USA Corporation Delaware, United States 100%

Avigilon Singapore PTE Ltd. Singapore 100%

Intercompany balances and transactions, revenues and expenses are eliminated in preparing 
the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, the Company incorporated Avigilon USA Corporation and Avigilon Singapore 
PTE Ltd.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency 

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Company’s subsidiaries are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Company and its subsidiaries operate (‘the functional currency”). The functional and 
presentation currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is the Canadian dollar,
with the exception of Avigilon USA Corporation, whereby its functional currency is the 
United States Dollar. There were no operations in this subsidiary during the year 
ended December 31, 2012.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are recorded at the 
rates of exchange at the date of the transaction. At each financial position reporting 
date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are 
translated at the rates prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items that are 
measured in terms of historical cost are translated using historical rates. All gains and 
losses on translation of those foreign currency transactions are recorded in profit or 
loss.

(c) Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and income. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

Estimates are based on historical experience, current conditions, and various other 
assumptions believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.  They are subject to review 
on a periodic basis and adjusted as necessary. As the estimation process is inherently 
uncertain, actual future outcomes could differ from current estimates and assumptions, 
potentially having material effects on future financial statements.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is 
revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and further 
periods if the review affects both current and future periods.

The following discussion sets forth management’s most critical estimates and assumptions in 
determining the value of assets and liabilities; and critical judgments made in applying 
accounting policies:

(i) Allowance for doubtful accounts

The Company must make an assessment of whether trade receivables are collectible 
from customers. Accordingly, management establishes an allowance for estimated 
losses arising from non-payment, taking into consideration customer 
creditworthiness, current economic trends and past experience. If future collections 
differ from estimates, future earnings would be affected. See Note 15(a) for further 
discussions on trade receivables and the associated allowance for doubtful accounts.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Significant account judgments and estimates (continued)

(ii) Inventory valuation

The Company adjusts inventory values so that the carrying value does not exceed 
the net realizable value. The valuation of inventory at the lower of cost or net 
realizable value requires the use of estimates with regards to the amount of current 
inventory that will be sold, the prices at which it will be sold, and an assessment of 
expected orders from customers. Additionally, the estimates reflect changes in 
products or changes in demand because of various factors, including the market for 
our products, obsolescence, changes in product offerings, technology changes and 
competition.

(iii) Warranty reserve

Provisions are made at the time of sale for warranties, which are based on historical 
experience and are regularly monitored. If the estimates for warranties and returns 
are too low, additional charges could be incurred in future periods and these 
additional charges could have a material adverse effect on our financial position and 
results of operations. 

(iv) Income taxes 

The Company calculates its income tax provision in the jurisdiction in which it 
operates. Actual amounts of income tax expense only become final upon filing and 
acceptance of the tax return by the relevant authorities, which occurs subsequent to 
the issuance of the consolidated financial statements. Additionally, the estimate for 
income taxes includes evaluating the recoverability of deferred tax assets based on 
an assessment of the ability to use the underlying tax deductions before they expire. 
The assessment is based upon existing tax laws and estimates of future taxable 
income. To the extent estimates differ from the final tax returns, earnings would be 
affected in the subsequent period.

(d) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits in banks with maturities of 
three months or less from the acquisition date.

(e) Revenue recognition

The Company's revenues consist of sales of hardware, software, and the provision of 
technical support services. The hardware and software elements are measured at the fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue is recognized when the following conditions have been met:
• significant risks and rewards of ownership have transferred;
• legal title has passed;
• the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually 

associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;
• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
• it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to 

the Company; 
• the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured 

reliably.

For sale of hardware, the above criteria are met upon shipment of hardware to customer and 
revenue is recognized at this time.

Software license revenues are recognized upon delivery of the software product key to the 
customer.  The software product key allows the customer to download the software.

Arrangements may comprise multiple product and service elements. The Company's multiple-
element sales arrangements include arrangements where hardware with embedded software 
licenses ("surveillance system") are sold and post-sale technical support services are 
provided.

The hardware and software function together to deliver the tangible product’s functionality and
is recognized when the criteria above are met. Revenue allocable to the technical telephone 
support is recognized together with the surveillance system on delivery as the following 
criteria are met:

• The fee is included with the overall system fee;
• The telephone support has historically been for one year or less;
• The cost of providing the support is insignificant; and
• Unspecified upgrades or enhancements offered during the period historically have 

been and are expected to continue to be minimal and infrequent.

Revenues are recognised net of sales discounts and returns.

(f) Share-based payments

The Company has an equity-settled share-based payment plan, which is described in Note 
13(c). The fair value of the awards granted is recognized as an operating expense with a 
corresponding increase in equity compensation reserve. The fair value is measured at grant 
date and each tranche is recognized on a straight line basis over the period during which the 
awards vest.

The fair value of the stock options granted is measured using the Black-Scholes option pricing 
model taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. 

At the end of each reporting period, the Company re-assesses its estimate of the number of 
awards that are expected to vest and recognizes the impact of the revisions in the statement 
of comprehensive income as a change in estimate.
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the local sales team and channel partners for this region.  2013 will see us focusing largely on expanding within Asia Pacific, India and Latin America.

One of the key features of the expansion of our sales team is our new business development team, which is focused on large enterprise scale sales in high growth vertical market segments. The role of the business development department is to work with the larger resellers and end-users in these verticals to ensure that they understand our products’ capabilities and the value proposition of the Avigilon system, bringing in regional sales representatives to assist with closing individual sales. These large enterprise-scale sales typically have much longer sales cycles and require a different sales strategy than our regional sales representatives employ for the smaller scale sales.

The business development team started in December 2011 with the hiring of a business development director for casinos, followed by the first of two business development directors for strategic accounts in the second quarter of 2012.  We added a number of key people in business development in the fourth quarter of 2012 and to date in 2013.  The group now includes a Vice President of Business Development plus five Business Development Directors covering:

1. Casinos;

2. Strategic Accounts,  such as Tyco Integrated Security, Siemens and Johnson Controls (two positions);

3. Architects and Engineers; and

4. Energy.

Through 2013 we will continue to add to this group for verticals such as retail, transportation, banking and government, among others.  We will also add business development resources in EMEA and Asia Pacific.

Although relatively new, the business development team has had a number of early successes.  Throughout 2012 we had a number of sales to casino end users, and these continue in the first part of 2013.  As of January 1, 2013 our system has been installed by 53 casino operators in 67 properties around the world, with a total of 10,420 channels of video running under our VMS.  Our largest casino sale in 2012 was to the Hard Rock Casino & Hotel in Albuquerque, New Mexico, which included our ACC VMS, 250Avigilon 4-channel analog video encoders and 200 Avigilon high-definition cameras. We have also seen success within the First Nations gaming within Canada and the US.  We are very pleased with the early results from our business development investment in the casino market and are encouraged by its continuing growth.

Another success for our business development team was earned in September when, through the efforts of our business development director for strategic accounts, Tyco Integrated Security (“Tyco”), the world’s largest dedicated fire protection and security company, approved Avigilon as part of their suite of products available for sale.  This resulted in:

• Avigilon products being included in Tyco’s pricing catalogs and internal sales website; and

• Tyco supporting our products internally through webinars and on-site training of their internal technical resources and multiple sales channels.

The rollout began in December 2012 and our products became available within Tyco’s internal ordering system in January 2013.  Although not a major contributor to our 2012 revenues, we anticipate that Tyco will contribute to a greater percentage of our revenue in 2013 and forward as we further execute on our plans. Our sales team is working closely with Tyco’s corporate office to educate their more than 69,000 employees in 50 countries about the advantage Avigilon and our products, and we are seeing an increasing number of orders from Tyco every week. We are also working on similar arrangements with other large strategic accounts, which we will announce as they are completed.

Avigilon Corporation
Notes to consolidated financial statements
For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars except number of shares and per share data)
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Research and development costs

The Company is engaged in research and development activities. Research costs are 
expensed as incurred.

Development costs are expensed, unless all of the following can be demonstrated:

• The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for 
use or sale;

• The intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
• The ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
• How the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;
• The availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the 

development and to use or sell the intangible asset; and
• The ability to measure reliably the expenditures attributable to the intangible asset during 

its development.

No development costs have been capitalised to date.

(h) Investment tax credits

The Company is entitled to certain Canadian federal and provincial tax incentives for qualified 
scientific research and experimental development activities. Previously, when the Company 
was a privately held entity, these investment tax credits (“ITC”) were receivable to the 
Company as cash upon approval by Canada Revenue Agency. As a publicly traded entity, 
these ITC are available to the Company to reduce actual income taxes payable and are 
recorded as a deferred income tax asset when it is probable that such credits will be utilized.
The utilization is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income. Management 
assesses the probability of usage based upon forecasted results.

ITC are recorded on the consolidated statements of comprehensive income as decreases to 
research and development expenditures.

(i) Income taxes

Income tax on the profit or loss for the periods presented comprises current and deferred tax
expense. Income tax is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity.

Current income taxes are the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using 
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at period end, adjusted for amendments to tax 
payable with regards to previous years.

Deferred income taxes are recognized using the liability method, providing for temporary 
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is calculated using tax 
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is 
settled.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Income taxes (continued)

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits 
will be available against which the asset can be utilized.  

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities, when they relate to income taxes levied by the 
same taxation authority and when the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

(j) Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share data for its common shares, 
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to common shareholders of the Company 
by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted 
earnings per share is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to common 
shareholders and the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the effects 
of all dilutive potential common shares, which comprise share options granted to employees 
and directors of the Company.

(k) Cost of sales

Cost of sales includes personnel and materials costs related to the sales of the goods as 
described in Note 3(e). In addition, cost of sales includes the amortization expense relating to 
manufacturing property, plant and equipment. 

(l) Property and equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses. The cost of an item of equipment and leasehold improvements consists of
the purchase price, any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and 
condition necessary for its intended use, and an initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and 
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

Depreciation is recognized at rates calculated to write off the cost of equipment and leasehold 
improvements, less their estimated residual value, using the straight-line method, over the 
estimated useful life, as outlined below:

Asset Method Basis

Manufacturing equipment Straight-line 8 years
Leasehold improvements Straight-line Initial term of the lease
Furniture and equipment Straight-line 8 years
Demo equipment Straight-line 3 years
Computer equipment Straight-line 3 years
Tooling Straight-line 3 years

The Company reviews the useful life, depreciation method, residual value and carrying value 
of its property and equipment at each reporting date. Where the carrying value is estimated to 
exceed the estimated recoverable amount, a provision for impairment is measured and 
recorded based on the higher of fair value less costs to sell or the asset’s value in use.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(l) Property and equipment (continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

An item of equipment and leasehold improvements is derecognized upon disposal or when no 
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain 
or loss arising on disposal of the asset, determined as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is recognized in profit or loss in the 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Where an item of equipment and leasehold improvements comprises major components with 
different useful lives, the components are accounted for as separate items of property and 
equipment. Expenditures incurred to replace a component of an item of equipment and 
leasehold improvements that are accounted for separately, including major inspection and 
overhaul expenditures, are capitalized and amortized over their estimated useful life.

(m) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s tangible and intangible assets are reviewed for an indication of impairment at 
each statement of financial position date. If indications of impairment exist, the asset’s 
recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset, or its cash-
generating unit, exceeds its recoverable amount. For an asset that does not generate largely 
independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit 
to which the asset belongs. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets 
that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets 
or groups of assets. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss for the period.  
Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce 
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to cash-generating units and then to reduce the 
carrying amount of the other assets in the cash-generating unit on a pro-rata basis.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in 
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value 
of money and the risks specific to the asset.

An impairment loss is reversed if there is an indication that there has been a change in the 
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to 
the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would 
have been determined, net of depreciation, if no impairment loss had been recognized. 

(n) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on a 
first-in-first-out basis and includes all costs of purchase, costs of conversion (direct costs and 
an allocation of fixed and variable production overheads, based on normal operating capacity)
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location and condition. Net 
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less 
estimated costs to complete the sale for finished goods and replacement cost for raw 
materials.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(o) Financial instruments

Measurement – Initial Recognition

The Company recognizes financial assets and liabilities when it becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. On initial recognition, financial assets and liabilities 
are measured at fair value plus transaction costs directly attributable to the financial assets 
and liabilities, except for financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, 
whereby the transaction costs are expensed as incurred.

Classification and measurement – subsequent to initial recognition

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and liabilities depends on the classification of 
such assets and liabilities. The Company classifies its financial instruments in the following 
categories depending on the purpose for which the instruments were acquired:

(i) Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

A financial asset or liability is classified in this category if acquired principally for the 
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the short-term. Derivatives are also included in 
this category unless they are designated as hedges. Financial assets and liabilities 
classified as FVTPL are measured at fair value with changes in those fair values 
recognized as finance income/expense in the statement of comprehensive income. 

Financial assets and liabilities classified as FVTPL are classified as current except for 
the portion expected to be realized or paid beyond twelve months of the balance 
sheet date, which is classified as non-current.

The Company does not hold any financial assets or liabilities as FVTPL as at 
December 31, 2012. As at December 31, 2011 the Company had foreign exchange 
contracts as FVTPL.

(ii) Available for sale (“AFS”)

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in 
this category or not classified in any of the other categories.  They are measured at 
fair value with unrealized gains and losses recognized in other comprehensive 
income (“OCI”) and are accumulated in a separate reserve within equity until the 
financial assets are derecognized or there is objective evidence that the financial 
assets are impaired. When AFS financial assets are derecognized, the cumulative 
mark-to-market gains or losses that had been previously recognized in OCI are
reclassified to earnings for the period. 

AFS investments are recorded as non-current assets unless the investment matures 
or management intends to dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the reporting 
period.

The Company does not hold any financial assets as AFS.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)(o) Financial instruments (continued)(iii) Loans and receivablesLoans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses and are included in current assets, except where maturities are greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period. These are classified as non-current assets. The Company has classified cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and deposits and prepaid expenses as loans and receivables.(iv) Held to maturity (“HTM”)Financial assets classified as HTM are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity in which the Company has the intention and ability to hold to maturity and have not already been designated in another other category of financial instruments. HTM financial assets are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.HTM investments are recorded as non-current assets unless the investment matures within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.The Company does not hold any financial assets as HTM.(v) Other financial liabilitiesLiabilities other than those classified as FVTPL are classified as other financial liabilities. Other financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method and are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within twelve months. Otherwise, they are presented as non-current liabilities.The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expenses over the corresponding period.  The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.The Company has classified its trade and other payables as other financial liabilities.

Offsetting financial assets and liabilitiesFinancial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the statement of financial position when, and only when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(o) Financial instruments (continued)

(iii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are measured at amortized 
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses and are included 
in current assets, except where maturities are greater than 12 months after the end of 
the reporting period. These are classified as non-current assets. 

The Company has classified cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables 
and deposits and prepaid expenses as loans and receivables.

(iv) Held to maturity (“HTM”)

Financial assets classified as HTM are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or 
determinable payments and fixed maturity in which the Company has the intention 
and ability to hold to maturity and have not already been designated in another other 
category of financial instruments. HTM financial assets are measured at amortized 
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

HTM investments are recorded as non-current assets unless the investment matures 
within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.

The Company does not hold any financial assets as HTM.

(v) Other financial liabilities

Liabilities other than those classified as FVTPL are classified as other financial 
liabilities. Other financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method and are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within twelve 
months. Otherwise, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a 
financial liability and of allocating interest expenses over the corresponding period.  
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 
payments over the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a 
shorter period.

The Company has classified its trade and other payables as other financial liabilities.

Offsetting financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the statement of 
financial position when, and only when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts 
and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(o) Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have 
expired or when the right to receive cash flows has been transferred together with 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities are derecognized only when the associated obligation has been 
discharged, cancelled or has expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the 
financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in profit 
or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company assesses all financial assets not classified 
as fair value through profit or loss and determines if there is objective evidence that an 
impairment loss has occurred. A financial asset is considered to be impaired when there is 
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial 
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows associated with the asset 
have been affected.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as 
the difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated cash flows 
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses are recognized in the 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment losses relating to AFS investments are recognized when the decline in fair value 
is considered significant or prolonged. These impairment losses are recognized by 
transferring the cumulative loss that has been recognized in other comprehensive income to 
net income. The loss recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income is 
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all 
financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced 
through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, 
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously 
written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the 
allowance account are recognized in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward 
contracts, to manage its exposure to foreign exchange.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered 
into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. 
The resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss immediately. The Company does not 
currently apply hedge accounting for derivatives.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(o) Financial instruments (continued)

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as separate derivatives 
when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contract and 
the host contracts are not measured at fair value through profit and loss.

The Company’s foreign exchange forward contracts are classified as FVTPL.

(p) Leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are expensed on a straight-line basis over the term of 
the relevant lease. Incentives received upon entry into an operating lease are recognized 
straight-line over the lease term.

(p) Provisions

Provisions are recorded when a present legal or constructive obligation exists as a result of 
past events where it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation 
can be made. The Company recognizes a provision for warranties when the underlying 
products are sold.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the costs to be incurred during 
the warranty period.

(q) Segment information

The Company operates in one segment which is reported in a manner consistent with the 
internal reporting provided to the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”). The CEO is considered the 
chief operating decision-maker (“CODM”) and has the authority for resource allocation and is 
responsible for assessing the Company’s performance.

4. Accounting standards issued but not yet effective

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual 
periods beginning after January 1, 2013, and have not been applied in the preparing these 
consolidated financial statements. Those which may be relevant to the Company are set out below. 
The Company does not plan to adopt these standards early.

(a) Amendments to IAS 1 on presentation of items of other comprehensive income

The amendments retain the option to present profit or loss and other comprehensive income 
either in one continuous statement or in two separate but consecutive statements. Items of 
other comprehensive income are required to be grouped into those that will and will not be 
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Tax on items of other comprehensive income is 
required to be allocated on the same basis. The measurement and recognition of items of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not affected by the amendments. The 
Company does not expect the amendments to IAS 1 to have a material impact on the financial 
statements.
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4. Accounting standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

(b) IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments, addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of 
financial assets and financial liabilities. IFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and October 
2010. It replaces the parts of IAS 39 that relate to the classification and measurement of 
financial instruments. IFRS 9 requires financial assets to be classified into two measurement 
categories: those measured at fair value and those measured at amortized cost. The 
determination is made at initial recognition. Where the fair value option is taken, the part of a 
fair value change due to an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in other comprehensive income 
rather than the income statement, unless this creates an accounting mismatch. IFRS 9 is to 
be applied for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015.  Earlier application is 
permitted.  The Company does not expect IFRS 9 to have a material impact on the 
consolidated financial statements.

(c) IFRS 10 – Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 10 – Consolidated Financial Statements, builds on existing principles by identifying the 
concept of control as the determining factor in whether an entity should be included within the 
consolidated financial statements of the parent company. The standard provides additional 
guidance to assist in the determination of control where this is difficult to assess. IFRS 10 is to 
be applied for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.  Earlier application is 
permitted.  The Company does not expect IFRS 10 to have a material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

(d) IFRS 12 – Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IFRS 12 – Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities, is a disclosure standard and is applicable to 
entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates or unconsolidated 
structured entities. IFRS 12 establishes disclosure objectives and specifies minimum 
disclosures that entities must provide to meet those objectives. The objective of IFRS 12 is 
that entities should disclose information that helps users of financial statements evaluate the 
nature of and risks associated with its interests in other entities and the effects of those 
interests on their financial statements. IFRS 12 is to be applied for annual periods beginning 
on or after January 1, 2013.  Earlier application is permitted.  The Company does not expect 
IFRS 12 to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

(e) IFRS 13 – Fair Value Measurements 

IFRS 13 defines fair value, establishes a single IFRS framework for measuring fair value and 
requires disclosures about fair value measurements.  IFRS 13 applies to IFRSs that require or 
permit fair value measurements or disclosures about fair value measurements (and 
measurements, such as fair value less costs to sell, based on fair value or disclosures about 
those measurements), except in specified circumstances.  IFRS 13 is to be applied for annual 
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.  Earlier application is permitted.  The Company
does not expect IFRS 13 to have a material impact on the financial statements.
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5. Expenses by nature
Year Ended

December 31, December 31, 
($ 000's)                  2012                 2011

Materials consumed and related costs 43,002 27,976
Salaries and benefits 25,575 16,456
Marketing, advertising and related costs 7,208 2,782
Office, administrative and other costs 5,146 2,823
Travel and related costs 2,800 1,852
Rent, telecommunication, IT and related costs 2,639 1,109
Professional services, insurance and filing costs 2,547 838
Depreciation 874 462

Total cost of sales, selling and marketing, research and 
development, and general and administrative expenses 89,791 54,298

6. Inventories

December 31, December 31,
($ 000) 2012 2011

Raw materials, work in progress 8,017 9,087
Finished goods 3,889 2,167

11,906 11,254

During the year ended December 31, 2012, there were no reversals of previously recorded inventory
write downs (2011 - $Nil). At December 31, 2012, the Company anticipates that all inventories will be 
realized within a year.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, $42,984 of inventory was expensed through cost of sales 
(2011 - $28,532).

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company incurred expenses of $146 relating to its 
provision for obsolete inventory (2011 - $30).
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7. Property and equipment

The Company’s property and equipment gross carrying amounts and accumulated depreciation are as 
follows:

($ 000's)
Manuf. 

Equipment
Leasehold 

improvements

Furniture 
and

equipment
Demo 

equipment
Computer 
equipment Tooling Total

At cost

Balance at January 1, 2011            734              333            543          235          572           90         2,507 

Additions            258              613            158          144           64           70         1,307 

Write downs              -                   -              -           (102)            -              -             (102)

Balance at December 31, 2011            992              946            701          277          636          160         3,712 

Additions 575 291 327 766 188 84 2,231

Disposals - - - (33) - - (33)

Balance at December 31, 2012 1,567 1,237 1,028 1,010 824 244 5,910

Accumulated depreciation 

Balance at January 1, 2011            (79)             (108)           (257)          (78)         (464)          (26)        (1,012)

Disposals or write downs              -                   -              -             53            -              -               53

Depreciation expense           (100)               (76)            (71)          (99)          (62)          (41)           (449)

Balance at December 31, 2011           (179)             (184)           (328)         (124)         (526)          (67)        (1,408)

Disposals or write downs - - - 13 - - 13

Depreciation expense (152) (170) (113) (251) (89) (71) (846)

Balance at December 31, 2012 (331) (354) (441) (362) (615) (138) (2,241)

Carrying amount

December 31, 2011 813 762 373 153 110 93 2,304

December 31, 2012 1,236 883 587 648 209 106 3,669

During the year ended December 31, 2012, $309 of depreciation was allocated to cost of sales (2011 -
$213).

8. Deposits 

During 2012, the Company entered into new lease agreements for its corporate offices in Vancouver,
its offices in Dallas, Texas, and expanded its Richmond manufacturing facilities. These new lease 
agreements required security deposits totaling $150. Total deposits held in relation to lease 
agreements amount to $274 (2011 - $220). The Company also paid a deposit of $220 (2011 - $Nil) 
during the year in relation to its corporate credit card facility. The Company has other minor deposits 
totaling $52 on account (2011 - $52). Total non-current prepaid expenses amount to $67 (2011 - $Nil).
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9. Trade and other payables

December 31, December 31,
($000) 2012 2011
Trade payables 10,411 3,643
Employee related payables 2,928 2,394
Accrued expenses 1,610 950
Other payables 623 778

15,572 7,765

10. Investment tax credits receivable and income taxes

(a) Investment tax credits

Prior to becoming a publicly traded entity in 2011, the Company’s claims for scientific 
research and development expenditures resulted in refundable investment tax credits totaling 
$973. The amount was received in full during the year ended December 31, 2012. 

The Company’s scientific research and development expenditures during the year ended 
December 31, 2012 resulted in investment tax credits of $1,366 which have been recorded as
a reduction in current taxes payable.

(b) Current income taxes

A reconciliation of income taxes at statutory rates with the reported taxes is as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011

$ $
Current tax expense 
Current tax expense in respect of the current year 2,252                 86
Adjustments for prior periods 40                  80   
Penalties and interest -                  40   
Part VI.I tax -                  396   

2,292                 602

Deferred tax expense (recovery)
Deferred tax expense recognized in the current year 726               1,191 
Adjustments for prior periods 268               (139)  

994 1,052 

Total income tax expense 3,286                1,654 
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10. Investment tax credits receivable and income taxes (continued)

(b) Current income taxes (continued)

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011

Income before taxes 10,455 5,483 
Combined federal mandatory provincial income tax rate 25.0% 26.5%
Tax recovery at statutory rate 2,614                1,453

Permanent differences 54                 98
Dividend accretion -                  124   
Stock compensation 295                 92
Interest and penalties -                  40   
Tax losses not recognized 18 -
Foreign losses tax effected at lower rates (9)                (3)
Revaluation of future income tax liability to reflect
  future statutory rates -                (92)
Change in prior year estimates 314                (58) 
Total income tax expense (recovery) 3,286 1,654 

(c) Deferred income taxes

A summary of the deferred tax asset presented in the consolidated statement of financial position is as 
follows:

Recognized 
Opening in profit Recognized Closing 

December 31, 2012 balance or loss in equity Balance

Deductible temporary differences                   68 159 - 227

Non-capital losses available for future 
periods                 144 - - 144

Scientific research and experimental                 819 (540) - 279

Share issuance costs                 637 (255) 436 818

Investment tax credits                 115 (302) - (187)

Property, plant and equipment (80) (56) - (136)

Deferred income tax assets              1,703 (994) 436 1,145
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10. Investment tax credits receivable and income taxes (continued)

(c) Deferred income taxes (continued)

Recognized 
Opening in profit Recognized Closing 

December 31, 2011 balance or loss in equity Balance

Deductible temporary differences                   (7) 75 - 68

Non-capital losses available for future 
periods                 857 (713) - 144

Scientific research and experimental                 974 (155) - 819

Share issuance costs                 103 (222) 756 637

Investment tax credits                 115 - - 115

Property, plant and equipment (43) (37) - (80)

Deferred income tax assets              1,999 (1,052) 756 1,703

11. Borrowings

During the year, the Company replaced its $8,000 revolving demand credit facility with a new $12,000 
demand revolving credit facility. This new facility is secured by a general security agreement providing 
a first charge over all assets of the Company. At December 31, 2012, an amount of $Nil was drawn 
against the new credit facility (2011 - $Nil).

The facility bears interest at the bank’s prime plus 0.5% per annum for Cdn$ and U.S. Base Rate plus 
0.5% per annum for US$ funds. Under the terms of the credit facility, the Company must satisfy certain 
restrictive covenants as to various financial ratios. At December 31, 2012, the Company is in 
compliance with all covenants, obligations and conditions of its credit agreement.

12. Leases

The Company has obligations under operating leases for its office and manufacturing premises. 
Minimum annual lease payments, including operating costs, pursuant to the lease agreements, are 
approximated as follows:

($ 000's)

Within one year                    2,180
Between two to five years                    7,209
Greater than five years                         -

                   9,389

The Company has expensed $1,713 related to leases for the year ended December 31, 2012 (2011 –
$591).

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company was provided total inducements in the form 
of rent-free periods amounting to $239 on signing new leases for its head office, an office for its U.S. 
operations, and for an extension to its manufacturing facilities. The full amount of the inducement was 
recorded as a liability and will be amortized over the life of the lease.
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12. Leases (continued)

In the prior year, the Company was provided inducements in the form of leasehold improvements of 
$342 on signing the lease for its head office. The full amount of the leaseholds was added to property 
and equipment and the inducement was set up as a liability and is being amortized over the life of the 
lease

For the year ended December 31, 2012, a total of $70 was amortized into income in relation to 
leasehold inducements (2011 - $5).

Operating lease obligations are the Company’s only long-term commitments.

13. Issued capital

(a) Authorized share capital

• Unlimited number of preferred shares convertible at the option of the holder, voting, non-
participating shares without nominal or par value

• Unlimited number of common shares with no par value

(b) Issued share capital

At December 31, 2012 issued share capital comprised 37,705,799 common shares 
(December 31, 2011: 31,021,287).

On September 6, 2012, the Company issued 3,593,750 shares at a price of $6.40 per share 
for gross proceeds of $23,000, pursuant to the terms of an underwriting agreement (the 
“Underwriting Agreement”) dated August 17, 2012 between the Company and a syndicate of 
underwriters. On September 20, 2012 the Company issued a further 539,062 shares at $6.40 
per share under the over-allotment option granted to the underwriters pursuant to the 
Underwriting Agreement. Total gross proceeds to the Company after the over-allotment option 
were $26,450. The Company paid the underwriters a fee equal to 5% of the total gross 
proceeds.

During the year, 2,551,700 options were exercised at an average price of $1 per option which 
resulted in the issuance of 2,551,700 shares and the transfer of $1,614 from the equity 
compensation reserve to common shares (2011 – Nil).

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company completed its initial public offering 
and secondary offering (the “Offerings) of its common shares and the Company’s common 
shares began training on November 8, 2011 on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the 
symbol AVO. The Company issued a total of 4,624,446 common shares at a price of $4.50 
per share for gross proceeds of $20,810. 

In accordance with the Company’s shareholder agreement the Offerings, all preferred shares 
were converted to common shares on November 8, 2011. A total of 9,148,639 preferred 
shares were converted to 9,148,639 common shares for $9,149.
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13. Issued capital (continued)

(c) Stock options

The Company maintains a stock option plan that enables it to grant options to its directors, 
officers, employees and other service providers. The plan allows for a maximum grant of 18% 
of issued and outstanding shares in aggregate. Each option agreement with the grantee sets 
forth, among other things, the number of options granted, the exercise price and the vesting 
conditions of the options. The options vest between 0 and 60 months from the date of grant 
and have a maximum term of five years.   

The changes in stock options during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were as 
follows:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Average Average 

Number of exercise Number of exercise 
options price options price 

$ $
Outstanding, beginning of period 5,380,600 1.20 5,183,100        1.03

Options granted 1,372,500 6.59    413,500        3.28
Options exercised (2,551,700) 1.00             -   
Options forfeited (50,000) 3.45   (216,000)        1.08

Outstanding, end of period 4,151,400 3.08 5,380,600        1.20

Exercisable, end of period 2,521,025 1.21 4,954,600        1.07

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised in 2012 
was $8.76 (2011 - $nil)

Information relating to share options outstanding at December 31, 2012:

Exercise price range
Number of 

options

Weighted average 
remaining life

(years)
$1.00 - $4.00 2,792,400 0.96
$4.50 - $8.62 1,359,000 4.52 

$1.00 - $8.62 4,151,400 2.12
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13. Issued capital (continued)

(c) Stock options (continued)

The weighted average grant date fair value of an option granted during the year ended 
December 31, 2012 is $2.61 (2011 - $1.61) per share. The option valuations were determined 
using the following assumptions:

Year ended
December 31, December 31, 

             2012              2011
Forfeiture rate 2% 2%
Weighted average share price at grant date $6.57 $3.28
Average risk-free interest rate 1.38% 2.39%
Expected life 5 years 5 years 
Annualized volatility 45% 55%
Dividend yield 0% 0% 

The volatility rate is based on statistical analysis of daily share prices of both the company 
and appropriate comparative companies over a period equal to the expected life of the 
options.

(d) Earnings per share

Year ended
December 31, December 31, 

($ 000's)                 2012                 2011

Net income 7,169                4,299
Dividends on preferred shares -                  (470)
Net income 7,169                  3,829

Basic weighted-average shares outstanding 32,994               19,234
Effect of dilutive securities:

Preferred shares -                7,624
Stock options 2,229                3,912

Diluted weighted-average shares outstanding 35,223               30,770

Net income per common share
Basic 0.22 0.20
Diluted 0.20 0.14

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, no stock options were determined to be 
anti-dilutive because the exercise prices of these options were lower than the estimated 
average market price of the common shares during the period.
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14. Related party transactions

(a) Trading transactions

The Company’s related parties consist of companies owned by directors. The Company 
incurred sales of $252 (2011 - $191) and purchases of $53 (2011 - $Nil) at the exchange 
amount and for the year ended December 31, 2012 in the normal course of operations in 
connection with companies owned by directors. The Company had a receivable balance of $69 
and a payable balance of $12 at December 31, 2012 (2011 - Receivable - $39, Payable - $Nil).

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

Remuneration for key management personnel during the year was as follows:

Year ended

December 31, December 31, 

($ 000's)                 2012                 2011

Short term benefits 1,846 1,741

Share based payments 421 244

Total 2,267                1,985

Key management personnel are comprised of the Company’s executive officers and directors. 
The remuneration of key management personnel is determined by the Compensation and 
Corporate Governance Committee having regard to the performance of individuals and market 
trends.

Year ended
December 31, December 31, 

($ 000's)                 2012                 2011

Wages and salaries 2,249 1,969
Benefits 18 16
Total 2,267 1,985
Less expensed in:

Sales and marketing 550 524            
Research and development 396 414
General and administrative 1,321 1,047
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15. Financial instruments 

The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, deposits, trade and other 
receivables and trade and other payables. The carrying values of these financial instruments 
approximate their fair values because of the short-term nature of these instruments.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into forward foreign exchange contracts to minimize exposure to foreign
currencies. These derivative contracts are categorized as financial assets carried at fair value through 
profit or loss (“FVTPL”), and have not been designated in hedge accounting relationships.  During the 
year ending December 31, 2012, the Company entered into various forward foreign exchange 
contracts and all were settled before December 31, 2012. The value of derivative financial instruments 
as at December 31, 2012 is $Nil (2011 - $88).

Financial risk management

The Company manages its exposure to financial risks, including credit risk, liquidity risk, currency risk, 
price risk and interest rate risk, in accordance with its Risk Management Policy. The Company’s Board 
of Directors oversees management’s risk management practices by setting trading parameters and 
reporting requirements. The Risk Management Policy provides a framework for the Company to 
manage the risks it is exposed to in various markets and to protect itself against adverse price 
movements. All transactions undertaken are to support the Company’s ongoing business. The 
Company does not acquire or issue derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative 
purposes.

The following describes the types of risks that the Company is exposed to and its objectives and 
policies for managing those risk exposures.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss 
for the Company by failing to discharge its obligations. Credit risk is primarily associated with 
trade and other receivables due to uncertainties as to the timing and amount of collectability of 
trade and other receivables; however, it also arises on cash and cash equivalents and 
derivative assets. To mitigate exposure to credit risk on financial assets, the Company has 
established policies to limit the concentration of credit risk, to ensure counterparties
demonstrate minimum acceptable credit worthiness and to ensure liquidity of available funds.

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited because the Company invests its cash 
and cash equivalents in chartered banks with high credit-ratings assigned by national credit-
rating agencies in accordance with its investment policy and the credit risk associated with 
these assets is considered to be low.

The amounts disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position with respect to trade 
and other receivables are net of an allowance for doubtful accounts, estimated by the 
management of the Company based on previous experience and its assessment of the 
current economic environment. The Company mitigates credit risk through credit and 
reference checks.
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15. Financial instruments (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

At December 31, 2012, the aging of trade receivables were:

December 31, December 31, 

($ 000's)                 2012                 2011

Trade 

Current 15,160 9,924
Aged between 61 - 119 days 1,884                   2,023
Aged greater than 120 days 380                   226

Total trade 17,424 12,173

Other receivables 1,242                   1,248
18,666                13,421

Allowance for doubtful accounts (213)                    (130)

Trade and other receivables 18,453                13,291

A reconciliation of allowance for doubtful accounts is as follows:

December 31, December 31, 

($ 000's)                 2012                 2011
Balance, beginning of year 130 77
Increase during of year 148 85
Bad debts recovered during the year (22) -

Bad debts written off during the year (43) (32)

Balance, end of year 213 130

The carrying amounts of financial assets on the consolidated statement of financial position 
represent the Company’s maximum credit exposure at the statement of financial position date. 

(b) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations 
associated with financial liabilities. The Company manages its liquidity risk to ensure that it will 
have sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities when due by monitoring its cash flows and both short 
term and long term obligations. Management ensures that working capital, defined as current 
assets less current liabilities, remains positive and cash flows from operations are reasonable 
based on the Company’s operations.

Management also ensures that sufficient credit facilities are available to the Company should 
it be required to meet obligations when they come due or where appropriate.
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15. Financial instruments (continued)

(a) Liquidity risk (continued)

At December 31, 2012, the Company had held cash and cash equivalents of $49,859 (2011 -
$12,418). During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company generated cash flows
from operations of $12,326 (2011 - ($3,434) cash flows used)

In July 2012, the Company replaced its existing $8,000 revolving demand credit facility with a 
new $12,000 demand revolving credit facility. During the year ended December 31, 2012, the 
Company did not draw on this facility. See Note 11 for further details.

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into contracts that give rise to 
commitments for future minimum payments. All of the Company’s financial liabilities have 
contractual maturities of 30 days or are due on demand and are subject to normal trade 
terms. The Company’s commitments for future minimum payments beyond one year relate to 
lease agreements which are disclosed in Note 12 and at December 31, 2012, the Company 
does not have any commitments for capital expenditures. 

(c) Market risk 

Market risk is the risk of loss that may arise from changes in market factors such as foreign 
exchange rates, commodity and equity prices, and interest rates. 

(i) Currency risk 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair values or future cash flows of the Company’s 
financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. 
Exchange rate fluctuations may affect the revenues as the Company has earned a 
significant portion of its revenues in the United States dollar (“U.S.”), the Great Britain 
Pound (“GBP”), the Euro (“EUR”), and the United Arab Emirates Dirham (“AED”). The 
appreciation of the Canadian dollar against non-Canadian dollar currencies can 
decrease the Company’s revenues in Canadian dollar terms. The Company also 
holds cash and cash equivalents that are denominated in non-Canadian dollar 
currencies which are subject to currency risk. 

The following table details the Company’s sensitivity to a 10% decrease in the value 
of the Canadian dollar against the relative foreign currencies. This analysis is based 
on foreign currency exchange rate variances that the Company considered to be 
reasonably possible at the end of the reporting period. It includes only outstanding 
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the 
period end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates. A positive value below 
indicates an increase in profit. A strengthening of the Canadian dollar by the same 
amount would have a comparable negative affect on profit. The impact on equity is 
the same as the impact on profit before tax.

December 31, December 31, 
($ 000's)                    2012                    2011

US Dollar 2,149 1,385
Great Britain Pound 206                      231
Euro 466 289
Emirati Dirham 8                         3   
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15. Financial instruments (continued)

(c) Market risk (continued)

(ii) Price risk 

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Company’s financial 
instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices of component parts 
and supplies used in manufacturing. The Company does not enter into contracts to 
hedge against gains or losses from changes in prices of components parts and 
supplies. The Company manages its price risk through multiple, competitive supplier 
arrangements and maintaining a sufficient stock of single-source and long lead time 
items to weather any temporary supply disruptions. 

(iii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair values and future cash flows of the Company 
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company has limited 
exposure to changing interest rates as the Company does not have any bank loans 
outstanding.

16. Capital management

The Company considers its debt and shareholders’ equity to be its capital for the purposes of capital 
management, the total book value of which is $70,892 (2011: $34,851)

The Company manages its capital structure with the objective of providing sufficient resources to meet 
day-to-day operating requirements, to allow it to enhance product offerings as well as develop new 
ones and to have the financial ability to expand the size of its operations by taking on new customers. 
In managing its capital structure, the Company takes into consideration various factors, including the 
growth of its business and related infrastructure and the up-front cost of taking on new customers. The 
Company’s officers and senior management that are responsible for managing the Company’s capital 
do so through quarterly meetings and regular review of financial information. The Company’s Board of 
Directors is responsible for overseeing this process. The Company manages its resources while 
maximizing the return for shareholders through the optimization of debt and equity balances.   

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

17. Segment information

The Company operates in one segment in which it develops, manufactures, markets and sells high 
definition surveillance systems.

Revenue is earned in six main regions: Canada, United States, United Kingdom, EMEA (Europe, the 
Middle East and Africa combined), Asia Pacific and Latin America. The following is a breakdown of 
revenue by geographic areas based on the customers’ locations:
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17. Segment information (continued)

Year ended 
December 31, December 31, 

($ 000's)                  2012                 2011

Canada 9,055 4,525
United States 51,594 30,850
United Kingdom 6,515 5,198
EMEA 23,678 14,120
Asia Pacific 5,304 3,088
Latin America 4,116 2,252
Total revenues 100,262 60,033

All non-current assets are held in Canada.
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